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Registerad Office :
# 3842, (3rd Floor H Block) Indra Palace,
Connaughi Cireus Inner Circle,

BHARUGH BAHEJ New Delhi - 110 004

RAILWAY COMPANY LTD. Tel | 011-435586814/17
S Sge Yo R fer Fay 019 - 43588813

CIN : 145203 DL2008 PLC155511

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twelfth Annual General Meeting of members of
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited will be held on Wednesday, the 26th
September, 2018 at 12.30 hrs at Conference Room, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited at
1*' Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Dethi 110066 to

transact the following business:

A ORDINARY BUSINESS:

I.  Approval on Audited Accounts

I. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31* March,
2018, Profit and loss Account & Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
that date, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ (both
Statutory and Secretarial) thereon and the comments of the Comptroller and

Auditor General of India thereon.

II. Reappointment of Retiring Directors

2. To appoint a Director in the place of Shri Vinay Singh (DIN No. 03324677)
who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-

appointment.
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3. To appoint a Director in the place of Shri Sajal Mittra (DIN No. 02625510)

who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-

appointment.

III Remuneration of Statutorv Auditors

4. Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the year 2018-19
As the Company comes under the purview of S. 139(5) of the Companies Act,

2013, the appointment of auditors is being made by Comptroller & Auditor

(General of India.

Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the remuneration of the
auditor of the Company shall be fixed by the Company in general meeting or in

such manner as the Company in general meeting may determine.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the

following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of Bharuch Dahej Railway
Company Limited be and are hereby authorized to fix, the remuneration of the
auditors of the Company appointed by the office of the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India for audit of accounts of the Company for the year 2018-19.”

By Order of Board of Directors
For Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited

a2
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Place: New Delht (Beena R. Shah)
Date: 21.08.2018 Company Secretary
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Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a

proxy to attend and vote at the meeting instead of him/her and the proxy need not

be a member of the company.

2. Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a
proxy on behalf of not more than 50 members holding in aggregate, not more than
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A
member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall
not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. The instrument appointing proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed at least 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting.

4. A proxy form is annexed to this Notice. Proxies submitted on behalf of the
companies, etc. Must be supported by an appropriate resolutions/authority,
whichever applicable.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the AGM are requested to send a duly certified copy of their Board Resolution

authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM.

Copies to:

A.  All the shareholders of the company
B Statutory auditors of the company
C.  Secretarial auditor of the company
D

All directors of the company



Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
| Pursuant 1o section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN: U45203DL2006PLC155511
Name of the company: BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Registered office: 39-42, 3" Floor, Indra Palace, If Block, Middie Circle, Connaught Place, New
Dethi

Name of the member (s) :
Registered address :
E-mail 1d:

Folic No/ Client Id ;
DFriIb:

[/We, being the member ($) of
1. Name :
Address :

E-mail id :
Signature :
2. Name :
Address:

E-mail Id :
Signature:................ , or failing him
3. Name :
Address:

E-mail [d:
Signatures................

............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

........................

as my/our proxy 1o attend and vote (on a poll} for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 12 Annual general
meeting/ Extraordinary—geaeralmeetiag of the company, to be held on the day,
2018 at hrs. at Conference Room, Rail Vikas Nigam Ltd, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji (ama

Place, New Delhi(place) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below :

Resofution No.

| PP
2,
3
Affix
Signed this dayof......... 2018 Revenue
Stamp

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

A
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Ragistered Office :
# 3%-42, {3rd Fioor H Blook) indra Palacs,
Connaught Cireus Inner Circle,

BRARUCH DAHEJ . New Delhi - 110 001,
RAILWAY COMPANY LTD. Tel : 015-4058881417
HT aEw Yord Fvae fer, Eayc 011 - 43588815

CIN : U45203 DL2006 PLC155811
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DISTINGUISHED SHAREHCOLDERS,

Direciors ol your Company feel privileged to present the Twelfth Annual Report of the Company,
containing safient features of operations and business of your Company, along with the Audited Annual

Accounts for the vear ended 31% March, 2018,

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Highlights of Financials of the Company as on 31.03.2018 are as under:

Particulars Amount (in Rs. crore}  Amount (in Rs, crore)

(Ior year ended 31.03.2018) {For year ended 31.03.2017)

Revenue from Operation 66.57 52.24
Other Income 05.00 08.19
Tofal Revenue [A] 11.57 60.43
Q&M Cost 44,79 49,36
Finance Cost 16.02 19.02
Depreciation 12.84 12.85
Other expenses 247 2.34
Total Expenses[B}] 26.12 8
Profit before Exceplional item  [A-B] 04.55 (23.14h
Exceptional [tem 5845 -
Profit before Tax 33.90 (23.14)
Taxes including Current Tax and 27.06 (4.31)
Deferred Tax

Profit after Taxes 26.84 (18.84)

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In line with what was done last year, Accounts of your Company have been prepared in accordance
with requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS). It may be recalled that the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its Gazette notification dated February 16, 2015, launched the IndAS to
be applicable to certain specified classes of Companies. Your Company attracts applicability of the new

Accounting Standards. IndAS is applicable w.e.f. April 2016, with a transition date of April 1, 2015 for
the Company.

(2/
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COMPANY’S OPERATIONS:

You are aware that Bharuch Dahej Raitway line became commerciaily operational from March 2012.

Year wise summary of volume of Traffic handled from 2012 to 2018 are as under:

S.No, | Financial Year No. of Rakes No. of Wagons Loading in
tonnes

1 2012-13 1370 79783 5371686
2 2013-14 {689 58660 6637000
3 2014-15 2697 157352 10871495
4 2015-16 1603 03430 6458841
> 2016-177 - 50460 3458536
6 2017-18* 779 45062 3094810

*Rakes includes coal, containers and other than coal rakes

Lower volumes of traffic have occurred mainly due to external [actors, manifesting in the form of
reduction in loading of coal, which was earlier the mainstay of your Company’s business, Such
reduction has been occasioned by a combination of factors, which include slowdown in the import of
coal in the face of enhanced indigenous production, and subdued growth in the national economy

i having adverse impact on power production. The position has improved somewhat during the current
: year as indicated below:

Year 2018-19 2017-18

Month No of No of Loading No of No of Loading
Rakes Wagons Tonnes Rakes | Wagons Tounes

April 84 4905 340249.2 16 £36 537572
May 80 4669 3245193 56 3169 210291
June 72 4192 290283 69 4009 276819
July 35 2044 140061 104 6041 410749
Total 271 15810 1095113 245 14115 935431

%)
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Loading of rakes during April-18 to July -18 has increased as compared with the loading in the
corresponding period of 2017-18. However, the mix of freight traffic is undergoing a subtle change,
and a diversified business base is emerging, Your Company has made efforts, with some success, to
afteact alternative streams of traffic. During the vear 2017-18, few rakes of other products like lime
stone, Fertiliser, Foodgrains ete. were also loaded. The Company has loaded Container and Gypsum
during 2017-18 as under:

Break up of Loading from Dahej Terminal (Container and Gypsum) during 2017-18

2017/2018 2016/2017

Con DAP[FOOD [FOTAL J ‘DAP FOOD |[TOTAL
Caustic 1 Conta Causti !

tain GYPSUM GRAIN : GYPSUM GRAIN
Soda ‘ iner ‘c Soda |
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Break up of Loading from Dahej Terminal (Container and Gypsum) and in 2018-19

Year 2018-2019 ) 2017-2M8
Month | COMINEr | cupcing | ToTan | COMBPET | GypsuM | TOTAL
Traffic Traffic
April - ' 23 23 3 6 9
May - ' 1 il 6 8 14
June - 25 25 1 8 0 |
Tuly - 8 8 2 18 20 |
" Total 0| 67 67 12 ' 40 52

Handling of Container traffic at Dahej has not occurred due to Western Railways order de-notifying
Dahej as CRT (Container Rail Terminal) and converting it into a Goods Shed. Your company is
pursuing the matter with Railway Board for declaring Dahej as a Private Freight terminal so as to be
able to handle all types of freight traffic.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

The Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Agreement to be signed with Western Raitway is still awaiting

finalization. Pending its finalization, Western Railway has continued to release revenue to BDRCL cn




a provisional basis. Responsibility of carrying out maintenance of assets on the line remamed with
BDRCL tilt Deecmber, 2015, under appropriate supervision and inspection by officers and supervisors
of Western Railway. However, in compliance of the conditions put forth by Commissioner of Railway
Salety while aceording approval for running of passenger services on the line, Western Railway has
taken over most of the maintenance activities on the line from January 2016 onwards. Consequently,
the cost of carrying out O&M has escalated. However. pursuant to claborate discussions with Western
Railway, your Company has evolved an arrangement whereby only activitics that are essentially
required to be carried out by Railway employees have been transferred to Western Railway, with the

balance remaining the direct responsibility of BDRCIL. This is expected to mitigate the cost increase (o

some extent,

PHYSICAL PROGRESS:

Barring a few construction activitics intended at enhancing the capacity for freight handling at Dahej
Terminal, physical work on the project stands completed. Looking 1o the relatively low volumes
materialising, the Company had decided earlier that the work related to providing additional line(s) and
a shunting neck at Dahej for handling container and other traffic should be deferred for the time being.
While Line No. 5 has become operationa), a few residual activities such as top wiring of the line and

carrying out signaliing modifications for interlocked working are in progress.

The Shareholders may recall that the Company had handled peak traffic of up to 9-10 loaded rakes in
a day during 2014-15. A consolidation plan had accordingly been prepared, to be implemented in
phases in a need based manner. As an initial step, the Company had decided to sphit the longest block
section of about 16 kilometres between Dahej and Pakhajan by constructing a new station at Sambhets,
almost mid-way. The Company has applied for allotment of land (30mtrs x 700mts) to GIDC for this
construction activity. On getting confirmation from GIDC. the Company will approach Railways for
approval of Engineering, Signalling and other pians for Construction of a 3-line station. However,
keeping in view the traffic that is being offered at present, we do not perceive immediate need to
undertake this work. The Company would time execution of this work in line with the business offering

so that premature investment in additional infrastructure is avoided.

Project Augmentation:

During the year 2017-18, the Company recognised need lor augmenting freight handling capacity at
Dahej Terminal in the light of dwindling loading at the terminal of a principal customer. This was
driven by significant latent capacity in the focal industry to offer considerable volumes of container

traffic. Accordingly, a full rake length rail level platform measuring 700m x 33m 1o facilitate handling

(8)



of container traffic together with adequate storage of empty and loaded containers. has been constructed
at Dahej beyond line no. 5. A few related user amenities and an approach road at Bharuch end have
also been constructed. The total cost incurred has been approximately Rs. 12.64 crore. The
augmentation would enable the Company to stack two rows of containers in double layers equating to
containers pertaining to four rakes, besides handling loading/unloading of containers in another rake.
The construction of Rail Level platform was completed in February, 2018. The work of making
arrangements for illuminating the platform is in progress, and once completed, the Company wilf have

capability for night loading/unloading so as to maximise atilization of the Terminal.

ISSUES OF LAND LICENSE FEE AND OTHER RELEVANT ISSUES:

BDRCL is a gauge conversion project, and a BG line was constructed on existing land of Western
Railway used up for an NG line earlier on the same alignment. The Concession Agreement speeificaily
provides that Annual Lease Rental for original land of Western Railway shall be “as per extant policy
of Ministry of Railways as revised from time 1o time”. According to a policy on participative models
of rail connectivily notified by the Ministry on 10" December, 2012, land licensing for gauge
conversion TV projects like BDRCL attracts only a token charge. According to this policy, Railway
Land as available in case of Gauge conversion projects will be made available on lease license at a
token rental fee of Re. 1.00 per annum. Therefore, this letter read together with the Concession
Agreement implies that from 10" December 2012, Land License Fee to be charged from BDRCL must

stand at Re. 1 per annum.

Shareholders are aware that Western Railways had taken a different interpretation, according to which
recovery at 6% ol market value of land was being demanded every year, and the market value was
updated periodically by inflating it by 7% each year. In the meantime, the rate of recovery had been
revised further upwards by Western Railway by obtaining fresh circle rates for land prices from civil
authorities, leading to more than doubling of the claim. This had resulfed in total accumulated land

lease rental amount of Rs. 175,26 crore up to March, 2017.

The matter was relentlessly represented by BDRCL to Raitway Board. On the issue of Land License
fee. besides the provisions of the Concession Agreement referred to above, it had been pointed out that
the Raitway’s interpretation would create serious differences among various SPVs on charge for land
as other Companics are all being charged a token fixed charge on this account. We had also pointed out

that there is apparently no rationale or justifiable basis for such dilferentiation as BDRCL does not get

any preferential treatment in any other matter.

(9)



Secing merit in the contention of BDRCL, Railway Board had sct up 4 Committee of Bxecutive
Directors to examine about ten issues raised by BDRCL (including the issuc of Land License Fee),
which impact the SPV adversely, and to make its recommendations. Based on the recommendations of
the Committee, and afier considering the Company’s representations, the Ministry of Railway issued a

letter No, 2017/Infra/12/20 dated 22.11.2017 containing the following decisions:

(1) Land License Fee should be charged?d Rs. 1000/-p.a. by suitable amendment in the
Concession Agreement and bills for land license fee to be raised since inception of the project;

(2) The Calculation of overheads on the Indirect Cost should be based on the principle adopted by
Western Railway in case of PRCL henceforth:

(3) Dahej Terminal as has been developed by the SPV should not be notified as Container Rail
Terminal of IR and consequently no terminal access charge should be collected by IR
henceforth; and

(4) As the section Bharuch-Chavaj was commissioned by the SPV at the instance of Western

Railway, the apportionment of freight for this section also be payable to BDRCL SPV from the

date from which the section was opened for traffic.

The above directions from the Railway Board have provided major relief to your Company. Reversal

of land lease rentals booked in previous years has transformed majorly the financials of your Company,

as reflected in the Annual Accounts 2017-18.

However taking a very literal interpretation of the Ministry’s orders on at least one issue, Western
Railway has de-notified the Dahej Terminal as CRT and notified the same as a Goodshed instead of
Private Freight Terminal as requested by BDRCL., on the grounds that land used for Dahej terminal
belongs to Railways and is not private land. The result has been the Railway has stopped accepting
indents for container rakes at Dahej Terminal, causing loss of traffic and revenue to BDRCL as well as

Indian Rajlways. The matter has again been taken up with the Ministry of Railways for satisfactory
resolution.

On the question of bearing cost of construction of ROBs/RUBs to eliminate unmanned level Crossing,
based on BDRCL's representations and pleas of the Association of [nvestors in Railways, Railway
Board has vide letter no.2015/Infra/18/6 dated 23.11.2017 decided that the cost of elimination of
unmanned level crossings on SPV lines will be borne by the Railways. Here also, Westetn Railway is
seeking to avoid their responsibility in the matter by stating that the orders are effective prospectively,

This matter has also been taken up with the Railways appropriately for resoiution.

(10)



RESERVES AND DIVIDEND

The Profit after Tax for the year 2017-18 is Rs.26.84 Crore. This has improved the Company’s
accumulated profits to Rs, 35,15 Crore. However, since actual relcase of funds by Western Railway has

been slow, your Directors seek your indulgence in endorsing their decision of not declaring any

dividend for the year 2017-18.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company’s Authorized Share Capital is Rs. 165 Crore, The Company’s Paid up Share Capital is
Rs. 155.11 Crore. The Company has not issued any further Equity Shares during the year.

FUTURE BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Notwithstanding slow offtake of traffic, it is the view of the management that going forward, there will
be demand for carrying significant volumes of freight traffic on the line, not only on a sustained but on
a growing basis, While the traffic offered by our major customer may not replicate the levels of 2014-
15 anytime soon, it is expected to be sustained at 3-4 rakes of multiple commedities including coal and
gypsum in a day. Together with container traftic which the Company expects to handle again once the
issue of classification of the Terminal is decided, the total volume expected in the foreseeable future

should sutfice for a sustained above-breakeven performance of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Your Company’s Board of Directors has five members, including a Chairman (nominated by the
Ministey), two nominees of Rail Vikas Nigam Ltd., one nominee of Government of Gujarat and a
Managing Director, During the year, the following Directors vacated their offices:
1. Shri Anirudh Jain, Chairman
Smt, Bela Banerjee, Independent Dircctor
Shri 8. P. Chaturvedi, Independent Director
Smi. D. Thara, Director
Smt. Chhavi Jha, Director

Shri Amit Kumar Singh, Director

S

Shri Ajay Bhadoo, Director

(_/r)



Sh. Anirudh Jain ceased to be Director of the Company after his supcranauation from Government
service on 31.07.2017. Further, Smt. Bela Baneriee and Shri S. P. Chaturvedi, Independent Directors
resigned (rom the position of Directors pursuant to amendment in Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rutes 2014 under which a Jeint Venture Company such
as BDRCL is not required Lo appoint Independent Directors. However, on some ambiguity about
whether BDRCL can be classified as a joinl venture Company being pointed out subsequently, the
Company has requested RVNL, being major sharehelder, to provide necessary guidance in the matter.
Further, Smt, D). Thara, Director (nominee Director GIDC) ccased to be Director w.c.f, 02.08.2017
pursuant to Section 67(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013. Shri Ajay Bhadoo, VC-CEO/GMB ceased
to be Director as he was relocated from the post of VC-CEO/GMB. Shri Amit Kumar Singh, DRM-
Vadodara (nominee of RVNL} also ceased as Director as he was relocated from the post of DRM-
Vadodara, Likewise. Smt. Chhavi Jha ceased to be Director after her relocation from her substantive
appointment. Nominations are awaited from Gujarat [ndustrial Development Corporation, Gujarat

Maritime Board and Rail Vikas Nigam Limited for the position of three Directors.

The Board of Directors appreciates the valuable contribution made by the above noted ceased Directors

during their tenurc as Directors in the Company. Their guidance during a difficult macrocconomic

environment was indeed most valuable.

Based on a nomination received from the Ministry of Railways, the Company appointed Shri Ajit
Pandit, AM (Works) Railway Board as Chairman w.e.[ 14.02.2018 vice Shri Anirudh Jain who ceased

to be Dircctor pursuant to his superannuation.

Based on a nomination received from the Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, the Company appointed Dr,
Meenu Dang, GGM (FinanceYRVNL as Director w.e.f 06.10.2017 vice Smt. Chhavi Jha who ceased

to be Director pursuant to her transfer/repatriation trom RVNI..

At present the Board of Directors of the Company consists of five Directors liable to retire by rotation,
Out of them, two Directors namely Shri Vinay Singh and Shri Sajal Mittra will retire by rotation in 12"

Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

The present composition of Board of Directors is as under:
1. Shri Ajit Pandit, Chairman (from Ministry of Railway)
2. Shri Sajal Mittra, Director (from Adani Petronet Dahej Port Private Limited)
3. Shri Vinay Singh, Director (from Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)

8
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4. Dr. Meenu Dang, Director (from Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)

5. Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Dircctor

Atiendance of Directors at Board Meeting:

During the year, the Board ot Directors had Nine Meetings on 16.06.2017, 25.07.2017, 11.08.2017,
06.09.2017, 20.09.2017,22,09.2017,22.12.2017, 10,01 208 and 27.03.2018.
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The Company had the following Key Managerial Personne! during the year:
‘ 1. Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director, appointed w.e.f. 12.08.2014
2. Sint. Beena R. Shah, Company Secretary, since 01.07.2013.

3. Shri Balkishan Sharma, Chief Financial Officer, designated w. ¢. f. 05.09.2014,

INTERNAL AUDITOR

M/s Sunil K Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants have been appointed as Internal Auditors of

the Company, and their appointment has been extended for the Financial Year 2018-19.
Internal Auditors have been discharging their role of carrying out various assigned [unctions, including

checking adequacy of internal control systems in the organization. They have also been presenting their

Internal Audit Report in meeting of the Audit Committee, and participating in the ensuing discussion.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company in pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013

as amended hereby confirms that:

i} in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicablic accounting standards have been followed along

with proper explanation relating 1o material departures:

ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for

that period;

i) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of’ the company

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
iv} the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

v) the Dircctors have devised proper systems (o ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
Auditor’s Report is enclosed as part of the Dircetors” Report. Comments of the Management on the

qualifications/comments made by the Auditor in their Report are enclosed as Annexure-Al and A2 o

the Directors® Report,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Secretarial Audit Report is placed with the Directors’ Report as Annexure B lor consideration of

Shareholders. The Report finds the Secretarial practices in line with the laid down requirements.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS RELATING TOQ CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORFPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO
Information under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31% March, 2018

is given below:
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i) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo

The Company has neither earned nor expended any foreign exchange during the financial ycar 2017-
18.

1) Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The Company is conscious of the need to keep all the cost elements at the barest minimum level
including the energy cost, It is also aware of the responsibility to conserve energy in an overall energy
deficit scenario in the Country. The Company has made significant investment upfront to construct a
Raitway line which runs on electric traction, and is significantly more economical and environment

friendly than the alternative diesel traction.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The extract of Annual Return in form MGT-9 enclosed at Annexure C forms a part of Board's report,

The Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee were dissolved pursuant to
amendment in Rule 6 of the Companies (meetings of the Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 under

which Jeint Venture Companies are not required to constitute Audit Committec and Nomination &

Remuneration Committee.

EMPLOYEES
As mentioned earlier, maintenance of the assets on the linc has been with the Company since 2012.
Apart from a very lean cadre of its own regular employees, the Company has engaged staff on

contractual basis for maintaining the engineering and signalling assets, and for carrying out other

essential activitics.

At present, the Company has a total of 100 employees. Out of these, 6 arc employed on regular basis,
and 94 cngaged on contractual basis. The contractual employees had a mix of 17 retired railway

employees, and 77 fresh faces, deployed alter suitable training.

During the year, the Company has not engaged any employee coming under scope of the Rule-5 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
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REPORTING UNDER SECTION 21 OF THE SEXUAL HARASSEMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSALY ACT, 2013
The following is a summary ol sexual harassment complaints received and disposed oif during the

calendar year.

Number of Complaints received: NIL
Number of Complaints dispased of: NIL

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS /S 186
During the vear, the Company has neither given loans, nor given any guarantec or sceurity to any person

or Body Corporate, nor made any investment pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 has brought the transaction with Associated Companies in the
scope of Related Party Transactions. During the year 2017-18, the Company has not entered with its
Associated Company M/s Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) any transactions requiring Board’s
approval under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company has entered with
Associaled Company RVNL some transactions at Arm’s length and in the ordinary course of the
Business which are noted by the Board of Dhrectors. Details of such Related Party Transaction is

enclosed as Annexure - D,

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT

The management of your Company is constantiy engaged in the process of identifying risks, assessing
risks and developing strategies to manage risks. While a risk management plan and a business unpact
analysis are imporiant parts of a business, carly stages of a business should combine optimal utilization
of opportunities with effective risk management. Your Company is in the business of rail transportation.
Cost advantages and environmental superiority associated with rail ransport make the business of your

Company a promising propostion.

Your Directors are aware that a business of this size and nature must be subjected to constant review
of various risks, and appropriate risk-mitigation measures must be taken from time 1o time. The major
risks perceived for the Company include:

* Issues of control by [ndian Railways - cost issues:
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o Capacity constraints, and roadbiocks in capacity enhancement:
*  Constraints in financing the capacity augmentation aclivities:
» Need for diversifying customer base; and

e Possible damage/ioss through acts of God.

In the assessment of the munagement. duly endorsed by your Dircctors, the risks identified are low to
moderate. Your Company plans to approach capacity enhancement through diverse interventions in 4
need based manner, consistent with the trend of offering traffic. Financing the capacity enhancement
will need to tollow a mix of internal generation and debt. The Company is already gearing up to meet
the demand for rail transportation amongst diverse customers. As regards possible impact of acis of

(od, the Company keeps its assets svitably insured,

In the view of your Directors, BDRCL.’s approach to risk ma nagement is dynamic and proactive, and

reviews will be taken from time to time to bring aboul appropriate interventions.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The information to be reported under the head of CSR is annexed as Annexure E forming part of the

Board of Directors’ Report.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE:

The Company has a Performance Evaluation Policy in place, setting parameters relating to roles,
responsibilities and obligations of the Board, effectiveness of its functioning, contribution of Directors

at meetings and the functioning of its Committees. Evaluation of performance has been made by the

Board of Direciors.

The Board of Directors has undertaken an evaluation of its own performance, the performance of its

Committee and of all the individua! Directors and considered the same as satisfactory,

STATEMENT OF ASSOCIATION:

Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited is a joint venture special purpose vehicle. Rail Vikas Nigam

Limited, by virtue of shareholding of 35.46% of paid up share capital, is an associated Company,
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DETAILS OF FIXED DEPOSIT:

During the year, the Company has neither invited has nor accepted any deposits covering under Chapter
V of the Companies Act, 2013,

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENT:

The Company had in place adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
during the year under review. A four stage mechanism has been put in place in this regard. Apart from
the Finance department of the Company holding direct responsibifity in the matter, a Chartered
Accountant Firm engaged on retainership examines the adequacy of system, the internal Auditors of
the Company also examine the systems in place for their adequacy. Finally, the Statutory Auditor of

the Company also includes comments on this aspect as part of their Report. Such controls have been

constantly tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

DETAILS OF COURT CASES:

The Company is facing cases under Service Tax and Labour laws which are as under:

The Statement of cascs under Service Tax:

;‘;_ Case No, Title of case ;[:t tSl::t;:.s:f

A 1 Service Tax

I | Show Cause | 1. Show cause notice in relation to services render by No further
Notige no. BDRCL to WR for the FY 2011-12, 12-13 and 13-14 communicati
58/2014 amounting Rs. 163314441 was receved by on has been
dated . Company as on 03-11-2014, received fill
21.10.2014 dare

2. In relation to above context the Company
submitted reply to notice on 02-01-2015.
3. Thereafter personal hearing took place on
22.09.2015 before Principal Commissioner of
Service Tax, Delhi which resulted in an order being
passed in favor of Company (Order No.-C. No DL-
HI/ST/TV/16/40/BDRCL 2015).
4, The department has gone into appeal against
abovc mentioned order vide Appcal No.
ST/51763/2016-CU [DB].

2 | Show Cause | 1. Show cause notice in relation to services render by No further
Notice no. BDRCL to WR for the FY 2014-15 amounting Rs. communicati
06/2016 16,37,96,945 was received by Company as on (4-04- on has been
dated 2016, received till
31.03.2016 2. In relation to above comtext the Company date

subimitted reply to notice on 24-05-2016.
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3, | Show Cause | 1. Show cause notice in relation to services render by No  further

‘ Notice  no. | BDRCL to WR for the FY 2014-15 amounting Rs. communicati
15/2017-18 16,14,85,037/- was received by Company on has been

' dated 2. In relation to above context the Company reccived tili |

‘ :21.03.2018 submitted reply to notice on 11.06.2018 | date i

A list of cases involving other labour issues is enclosed as Annexure-F.
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Addendum to Directors’ Report

Porornerine A

S.No.

Auditors’ Qualification

Management Comment

The opening balances and the
comparative figures disclosed in the
Ind AS financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2018 are

based on the audited Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the

year ended March 31, 2017 on which
our  Auditors’ Report  dated
September 20, 2017 expressed a
qualified opinion. The matters which

resulted in the qualification inter alia :

included the prospective application
of Appendix A to Ind AS 11 from the
transition date on the first Ind AS
financial statements of the Company

‘ as at March 31, 2017. The Company |
had opted to apply this appendix from .

the transition date prospectively as
the Management did not find it
practicable to apply this appendix
retrospectively. Based on  audit
procedures and queries made, we
were unable to obtain  sufficient
appropriate  audit evidence to
ascertain that retrospective
apphication of Appendix A to Ind AS
11 was impracticable as defined in
Ind AS 8 to avail the exemption of Ind
AS 101. Consequently, we were
unable to ascertain the impact, of the
above on the Ind AS financial
statements of the company.”

In view of the above, any
adjustments to the opening balances
as at Ap_ril 1, 2017 that would have

Para 5 of IndAs 8 provides that |
application of an accounting policy
can be treated as Impracticable when:

(@) The effects of the retrospective
application or retrospective
restatement are not
determinable:

(b) The retrospective application
or retrospective restatement
requires assumptions about

what management's intent
would have been in the period:
or

(c) the retrespective application or
retrospective restaterment
requires significant estimates
of amounts and it ts impossible
to  distinguish  objectively
information about  those
estimates that: (i) provides
evidence of circumstances that
existed on the date(s) as at
which those amounts are to be
recognised, measured or
disclosed; and (i) would have
been available when the
financial statements for that
prior period were approved for
1ssue from other information.

Considering the impracticability as
defined in the para 5 of Ind AS -8
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been required may have a
consequential effect on the
Company's assets and liabilities as
at April 1, 2017 and March 31,2018
and its results for the year ended
March 31, 2018, and the
presentation and disclosure thereof
in the financial statements.

| of  concession agreement,  the

defined above  which includes |
requirement of what could be

management's intention at that time,
circumstances as on date
transactions and other relevant
information since the date of signing

Management decided to apply the
appendix from the transition date
prospectively.

Further, exemption adopted by
company is in line with the exemption
available in para D 22 of Ind AS 101,
Para D22 of IndAs states as under

A first-time adopter may apply the
following provisions while applying the
Appendix A to Ind AS 11:

i) Subject to paragraph (i), changes in
accounting policies are accounted for
in accordance with Ind AS 8 je.
retrospectively, except for the policy
adopted for amortization of Intangible
Assets  arising from  Service
Concession Arrangement related to
toll roads in financial statement for the
period ending immediately before the
beginning of ist Ind AS financial

reporting period as per previous
GAAP.

iy If, for any particular service
arrangement, it is impracticable for an
operator to apply this Appendix
retrospectively at the date of
transition, it shall:
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a) recognise financial assets and
intangible assets that existed at
the date of transition to Ind AS.

b) use the previous carrying
amounts of those financial and
intangible assets (however
previously classified) as their
carrying amounts as af that
date; and

c) test financial and intangible
assets recognised at that date
for impairment, unless this is
not practicable, in which case
the amounts shall be tested for
impairment as at the start of the
current period.

i) There are ftwo aspects to

retrospective determination:
reclassification and re-measurement.
It will usually be practicable to
determine retrospectively the
appropriate  classification of all
amounts previously included in an
operator's balance sheet, but that
retrospective  re-measurement  of
service arrangement assets might not
always be practicable. However, the
fact should be disclosed.

In terms of sub-para D22(iii), as
reproduced above, if in the
management’'s view it is found
impracticable to give retrospective
effect, the fact should be disclosed.
In the view of BDRCL's management,
retrospective effect is impracticable
and this fact has been duly disclosed
in Note No. 48.1.3 Service
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| Concession Arrangement in to the
financial statement of the Company.

Reference is drawn to Note No. 47
of the Ind AS financial statements on
Obligation to Restore project assets
to specified level of serviceability. In
terms of Concession

agreement, there is an obligation on
the Company to keep the project
assets in working condition,
including making replacement, as
per laid down standards of Ministry
of Railways, of all project assets
whose lives expire during the
concession period. Accordingly,
Company is required to provide for
in respect of replacement obligations
arising during the remaining
concession period as per
requirement of Appendix A of the Ind
AS 11 at the best estimate of
expenditure required to settle the
obligation. However, the company
has not estimated and provided for
the aforesaid obligation in the
financial statements. In the absence
of information, we are unable to
ascertain the impact of the above on
the Ind AS financial statements of
the company.

Ind-AS 37 defines a provision as a |
liability of uncertain timing and amount
and prescribes conditions that have to
be satisfied for recognition of a
provision. '

- A provision shall be recognised when:

® an entity has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) that is a result
of a past event:

e it is probable that an outflow of
resources  embodying  economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obiigation; and

# a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision
shall be the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. In other words, the
amount that an entity would rationaily
pay to settle the obligation at the end
of the reporting period or to transfer it
to a third party at that time. The
estimates of outcome and financial
effects are determined by the
judgment of the management of the
entity, supplemented by experience
and in some cases, reports from
independent experts.

As per the concession agreement
Company is under an obligation to
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keep the project assets in working |
condition, including making
replacement, as per laid down

' standards of MOR. However, at

present reliable estimate for
restoration obligation is not available,
therefore provision for same has not
been recognised in financial
statements, the same will be
provided in the year in which
estimate becomes reliable. The facts
has been disclosed in note 47 of
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Management Comment

1
=lo
=
Q

Without qualifying our opinion, we
draw attention to Note No, 19 & Note
No. 21 to the Ind AS financial
statements, The Operation and
Maintenance Agreement with the
Western Railway that defines among
others, right & obligations, the share of
Income & Expenses to be apportioned
to the Company arising out of the
operation of the Bharuch Dahej Samni
Railway Line by the Company has not
yet been signed. The Company has
however recognized the operating
income and expenses arising out of
this arrangement which is yet to be
formalized.

We further draw attention to Note
No.19 and Note No. 21 to the Ind AS
financial statements. The Operating
Income & Operating Expenses
accounted for by the Company are
based on provisional figures made
available by the Western Railway and

Afewitemsinthe O & M Agreement,
where there was difference of opinion
with Western Railway, are presently
under examination and discussion
with the Ministry of Railways. The
Agreement has not been finalized as
with the existing difference of opinion
on important elements in the interests
of BDRCL. Recently, Railway Board
had resolved some of the key issues
vide their letter No- 2017/Infra/12/20
dated 22.11.2017. in accordance
with this letter management is in the
finalization of O&M agreement with
the Western Railway.
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[the final figures could vary. Ourj

Opinion is not qualified in respect of
this matter.

Without qualifying our opinion, we
draw attention to Note Neo. 19 and
Note No 8.1 to the ind AS financial
statements. The Income from
Railway Operations of

Rs 5312.55 lakhs (previous year
ended March 31, 2017; Rs 5159.37)
includes revenue amounting to Rs.
386.87 lakhs (previous year ended
March 31, 2017

‘Rs. 418.98 lakhs) pertaining to
Bharuch-Chavaj section computed on
provisional basis. The revenue
recognized is outstanding as Trade
Receivable of

Rs. 3102.62 lakhs as on the balance
sheet date. As per information and
explanations provided, the revenue
apportionment by Western Railways
does not include the apportionments
for share of revenue towards the
Bharuch - Chavaj section. Further,
the company has also recognized the
‘Intangible assets’ pertaining to this
section as the freight sharing rights of
the company. However, the
concession agreement executed with
the Ministry of Railways dated

25th June 2008 does not include the
said section as it was not envisaged
at the time of agreement. During the
period, the Railway Board vide its
letter dated 22-11-2017 has
approved for apportionment of freight

In connection with receivables of Rs
3102.62 Lakhs from the Western
Railway towards revenue pertaining
to Bharuch-Chavaj Section, Western

. Railway has already adjusted an

amount of Rs 419.25 Lakhs vide |
receipt for apportionment of Goods
Traffic earning for the m/o July 2016.
Hence the receivables in this
connection are Rs. 2683.37 Lakhs,

Further, we would like to inform you
that the matter has been resolved by
the Railway Board vide their letter
No. 2017 /infra/12/20 dated
22.11.2017. Revenue on account of
this will received soon.

Accordingly, we are of the firm
opinion that the Company has
recognized the corresponding
revenue entirely consistent with Ind
AS-18.

(46




AR E A T o+ e S a o e meenm ah m

from which the section was opened
for traffic. However, the
apportionment is yet to be provided
by the Western Railways and the
final figures could vary. Qur Opinion
is not qualified in respect of this

matter.
For and on behalf of the Board of Director of
Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited
Place: New Delhi Rajendra Kashyap Dr. Meenu DangK]
Date: 21-08-2018 {Managing Director) (Director)

DIN 00367378 DIN 05171078
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] l Annexure-C

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3] of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the
Company (Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

l

! REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i JCIN U452032006PLC155511

ii  {Registration Date 15.11.2006

il BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY
Name of the Company LIMITED

tv  |Category/Sub-category of the Non Indian Government Company
Company

v |Address of the Registered office 39-42, 3rd Floor, Indra Palace, H Block,
& contact details Connaught Circus, Middle, Circle,

Connaught Place, New Delhi 110001 Pn No.
011-43586815

vi |Whether listed company Unlisted

vii {Name 6 Address & contact details |Not Applicable
of the Registrar & Transfer Agent,
if any.

!

II {PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the toral turnover of the
comparny shall be stated

SL No |Name & Description of main NIC Code (% to total turnover
products/services of the of the company
Product
[service
1 |Freight Rall transport 49120 100
2
3
4

I |PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

51 No (Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN |[HOLDING/ % OF APPLICA
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES |BLE
ASSQOCIATE HELD  {SECTION
1 |NIL
2
3

i
H

C.,?Q)
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN {Equity Share capital Breal up as % to 10tal kquity]

Category of Shareholders | No. of Shares held at the heginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of the ihan
the year year o
Dema} Physical Total % of jDem| Physical Total % of
t Total | at Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1} indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 ol ¢
by Central Govt.or
State Govt. {including RVNL) 0] 90720000} 90720000] 58.49 0] 907200001 90720000§ 58.49]
¢} Bodies Corporates 0l 64390000] 64390000 41.51 ¢l 64390000] 643900007 41.51)
d) Bank/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol <
e) Any other o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o] ¢
SUB TOTAL{A) (1) 0] 155110000| 155110000 100 155110000] 155110000 i00] ¢
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢} Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 4! 0 g ¢
d) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
&) Any other... 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¢
0 0 0 0 a 0 0
SUB TOTAL (A} (2}
0 0 § 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding of
Promoter
(A)= (A){1}HAN2) 0} 155110000} 155110000 100 155110000f 155110000 00| ¢
0 0 0 0 0 g of
0 0 0 0 0 0 ol
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 0 0 0 0 0 0 )
0 0 D i 0 0 0
(1) Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 o ¢
a} Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/F! © 0 0 D o 0 a 0
C} Cenntral govt 0 0 0 0 0 h 0
d} State Govt, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 ) 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0} 0 0 0 o o
g) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 o 0 0 0 0
i} Others (specify) 0 0 o 0 0 0 0
o 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (B){1): ¢ 0 o 0 0 0 0
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0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(2} Non Institutions o] 0 0 0 0 o 0
a) Bodies corporates 0 0 0 0 0 C 0
i} Indian 0 0 0 0 G 0 0
ii} Overseas 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0
b} Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i} Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs 0 0 0! 0 0 o 0
i) individuals shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 1
lakhs o 4 0 0 0 4 0
- ¢) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
o . ¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (B){2): 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public Shareholding
(8= (B)11{B)2) 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
€. Shares held by Custodian
~for
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0
Grand Total (A+B+C) 6] 1551100001 155110000 100 155110000] 155110000 100
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(iiy SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Si No. IShareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the 9%

begginning of the year end of the year change
in share
holding
during
the year
NO of shares |% of total  {% of shares NG of %of  [% of
shares pledged shares total  |shares
of the encumbere shares Ipledeed
company |d to total of the [encumb
shares compa lered to
ny total
shares
RAIL VIKAS NIGAM LTD. 56,003,000 35.46 a 55,000,000 3546 [0 1§
2 ADANI PEFRONET {DAHE]) PORT : 17,330,000 11.17 0 17,330,000 1117 0 0
PRIVATE LIMITED
tiii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS'
SHAREHOLDING { SPECIFY IF THERE
IS NO CHANGE)

Sl No. Share holding at the Cumulative Share
heginning of the Year holding during the year
No. of Shares|% of total  |No of % of total
shares of  [shares shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise increase/decrease in 0 o 0 0
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease {e.g,
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)
‘tAt the end of the year 0 0 0 0
(i'v) Shareholding Pattern of top ten
Shareholders {other than Direcors,
Promoters & Holders of GDRs &
ADRs)
Sl No Shareholding at the end of|Cumulative Sharehelding '
For Each of the Top 10 No.of shares 1% of total INo of % of total
Shareholders shares of  [shares shares of
; the the
! company company
b At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
1 GUJARAT MARITIME BOARD 17,860,000 11.51
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DAHEJ SEZ LIMITED 10,000,000 6..45
GUJARAT NARMADA VALLEY 13,530,000 §8.72
FERTILISER COMPANY LIMITED
4 HINDALCQO INDUSTRIES LTD 13,530,000 |8.72
g JINDAL RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LTD. 10,000,000 [5.45
6 GUJARAT INDUSTRIAL 17,860,000 11151
_ DEVELOPMENT CORFORATION
Total Paid up capiral 155,110,000 j100.00
Date wise increase/decrease in 0 0 0 a

Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e g.
allotment/transter/bonus/sweat

equity etc)
At the end of the year (gr on the Same as at the begining of the {0 4]
-|date of separation, if separated year

during the year}
iv) ‘Shareholding of Directors & KMP

Si.No T o Shareholding at the end of|Cumulative Shareholding o
For Each of the Directors & KMP  |No.of shares |% of total  |No of % of total
shares of  |shares shares of
the the
. company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise increase/decrease in 0 0 0 0
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc]
I At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

i
i
b
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v INDEBTEDNESS

indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans |Unsecured{ Deposits | Total
excluding Loans Indebted
deposits ness
indebtness at the heginning of the
financial year
D 0

i} Principal Amount 1888242836 0 0
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 15292434 Q0 ]

[ | g g
Total {i+ii+iii) 0 0

| | 0 g
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year e 0
Additions ] D 0
Reduction 276957371 0 a
Net Change -276957371 0 ]
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year O 0
i} Principal Amount 1611286465 0 0
i) Interest due but not pald 2472933 0 0
it} Interest accrued but not due 0 g

| l q 9
Total {i+ii+iii} of of

Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEI,

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Name of the
MD/WTD/Manager
Sl.No Particulars of Remuneration ! / g Total Amount
1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax, 1961, Shri
Rajendra
Kashyap 2506667

(b} Value of perquisites
ufs 17{2} of the Income
tax Act, 1961

26400
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{c) Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961
0 gl
2 Stock option 0 0 of of 0 !
3 Sweat Equity 0 of 0] of a 0
4 Commission 0 o] e of a 0
as % of profit 0 0 0 )| 0 0
others {specify)
5 Others, please specify
Total {A) 2533067
Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors:
SLNo Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount
Shn s P mt. bela Shr Sagal
i independent Directors Chaturvedi  |Banerjee  [Mittra 0 0
(a) Fee for attending board committee
meetings 22500 22500 45000
(b) Commission 0 0
(¢ ) Others, please specify] 0 0
Total {1) 22500 22500 45000 0
2 Other Non Executive Directors 0 0
{a} Fee for attending
board committee meetings 0 0
{b} Commission 0 0
Incidental
(c ) Others, please specify|Expenses 9000 9000 0
Total (2) 9000 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) | 22500 22500 9000 54000 0
Total Managerial Remuneration 0 0
Overall Cieling as per the Act.
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Sl. No, Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
1 Gross Salary CEOQ/MD | Company| CFO Total
Saecretary
(a} Salary as per
provisions cantained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.
2506667 950642 1286760J 4744069
(b} Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961
26400} 5000] 5000] 36400
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(¢ ] Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify

Cthers, please specify

ololojol o]l o)l o

=] =1 H~] E«] B=] g=1 =]

Total

2533067,

955642

1291760

4780469
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PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type

Section of the
Companies Act

Brief Description |Details of
Penalty/Punishme
nt/Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
{RD/NCLT/Court)

Appeail
made if any
{give
details}

NIL

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penaity

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Jlace: New Dethi
Jate; 21.08.2018

For and behalf of the Board of Directors o
BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY

)

{Rajendra Kashyap)
Managing Director
DiN- 00367378

(36)
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Annexure-D
Form No. AOC-2

{(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form [or disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties

’78L,. " Name(s) of | Nature of | Duration | Salient terms of | Justification for | Date(s) 0F| Amount | Arm's_m—‘
No. | the related | contracts of  the | the contracts or | entering into 1 approval by ' paid as | length/n
party  and | contracts | arrangements or | such contracts or | the Board, if | advances, ! ot arm’s
nature  of | /arrangements | transactions arrangements or | any: if any: length
relationship | . | arrange | including  the | transactions
ftransactions oo i
ments value, if any {(INRin
v Lakhs)
Aransacti |
ons
1. ['Rail Vikas Projéct 2017-18 | As pcrm the | N. A. " | Board noted | NLA. Arm’s
Nigam expenditure in Memorandum the length
Limited terms of of Article, transaction
construction Sharcholders in the Rs.23.64
agreement Agreement  and meeting |
Construction held on |
Agreement 21.08.2018
L. - i
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
e
- ——
Place: New Delhi {Rajendra Kashyap) {Meenu Dang)
Date: 21.08.2018 Managing Director Director

DIN-00367378 DIN--05171078

(31



ANNEXURE- E

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN TIE
BOARD'S REPORT

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects.-

The Board of Dircctors in their meeting held on 26.03.2015 approved CSR policy as recommended
by the CSR Committee. The Policy has been prepared in accordance with provisions of the Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporatc Sacial Responslblim Polm)
Rules, 2014. The same is available at the Company’s website = : Y no b
policy contains inter alia the Objectives, framework, focus of areas and key rules and gmdclmeb
for incurring CSR expenditure etc. The areas of activities mentioned in the policy are as per
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013

SEACINCRNS ;"u"
LR S

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee;-
The Committee presently consists of the following Directors namely:
1. Shri Vinay Singh, Director
2. Dr. Meenu Dang,
3. Shri Rajendra Kashyap, Managing Director

During the ycar under review, the Committee met twice on 06.09.2017 and 27.03.2018. The presence
of Members is as under:

Sl Name of Directors Date of Meetings of CSR Commitiee
No
06092017 27.03.2018

l. Shri Vinay Singh, Director - -
2. | Shri Amit K. Singh, Director LOA Present i
3. Smt. Chhavi Jha, Dircctor Present Ceased
4, Shri Rajendra  Kashyap, Managing | Present Present

Director
5. Dr. Meetu Dang - Present

(38)



3. Avcerage net profit of the company for last three financial years :

Average profil of the Company for the last three vears i.e. 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 is Rs.

1200 lakh.

4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above) during 2017-18 was

Rs. 25.8 lakh

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) Total amount spent for the financial year Rs 18,67,826 lakh

(b) Amount unspent, if any; Rs. 7.12 lakh

{¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below,

SN | CSR Sector in | Projects Amoun | Amount spenton | Cumulativ | Amouns
0 identifie j whichthe | or toutlay | project or Program | e spent: [¥ircct
d Projectis | programs | (budget : expenditur | or through
covered | 1)Local |) With subtitle & upto implementin
area or _ . Reporting | g agency
other (I::OJ ect Sy E;{I;;ditur period
2) Specify | progra (2) E)\ferheads
the State | m wise
and
districts
where
projects
or
programs
were
undertake
n
1. Mobile | Promotin | Local Rs. Rs. 18,67,826 Rs.37.99  Through
Health g Health | Area 18.67 lakh implementin
Unit Care around jakhs | (DDirect: Rs. g Agency
including | Bharuch | pa. 1431915/
preventiv | Dahcj M/s Dee‘pak
ehealth | Railway Foundation
care Line in (2) Overhead: Rs. based at
the state 435911/ Vadodara
of Gujarat
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District ]
Bharuch

Details of Implemehting Agency:

Deepak Foundation is a registered Trust under Bombay Pubiic Trust Act, 1950. It is registered on
22.11.1982. It is also registered under Section 12A of the Income Tax Act. It works in the area around

the Company’s Project of Bharuch Dahej Railway Line. [t conducts similar activity for other clients
since 2012,

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three

financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report.

1. Freight traffic carried by the Company continued to be low duc to external macroeconomic factors.
Consequently, revenue remained fow;

2. Due to take over of various activities for maintenance of assets by the WR, a si gnificant growth in O
& M Expenditure occurred;

3. With Western Railway not releasing BDRCL’s legitimate share in revenues, a serious cash flow crisis
built up, leaving the Company with insufficient cash for undertaking CSR activities at higher levels.

4. Total Expensecs remained about Rs, 4.55 crore higher as compared to Total Revenue. In view of
above, due to adverse financial position of the Company, the Company decided to keep on hold
augmentation of scope of the CSR activities.

7. The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and

Policy of the company.
r" -..____- ‘
Place: New Dethi (Rajendra Kashyap) (Meenu Dang) |
Date: 21.08.2018 (Managing Director) {Chairman of CSR Commitiee)
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| Annexure-F

DETAILS OF COURT CASES OF BDRCL as on 18.08.2018

Sr. No. |Case No, |Title of case Filed by Status of the case
1 |Labour Court - Bharuch
LC/79/14 SOYEB Shekh vd BDRCL  {Reply has been filed before court and further
LC/32/14 Main Khan Vs BDRCL action by court is awaited.

2 |Recovery Application before Labour Court

29/15 Pradeepkumar Chandel vs ob have been filed bet
- : jection have been filed before court as our
iad of dis- BDRCL{Applicant expired) |7~
Pavr‘r_‘pent for the Perlod ordis Misc. Application na. 15/2015, 16/2015 are
continuation to till date )
3115 FarukkhanAzadkha Vs pending before labaur court
BDRCL

3 [Misc. Application

Pradeepkumar Chandel vs
Chalienging the orders of labour  |BDRCL{Applicant expired
15/2015 {93/2014) cozrtegil:gr taek:: St:i staff on (Aopli expire Mo reply has been filed by opposite party {On
& applicant of case no. 15/2015 expired)

]

duty FarukkhanAzadkhan v
16/2015 {91/2014) B":;:c]_ anAzadkhan Vs

4 |CAT/ADI

Sarfaraz Diwan & 101
others Vs Union of India
0A No. 449/2015 {CRB), GM/WR,
DRM/BRC, MD/BDRCL &  |Written argumnets filed before CAT
AGM/BDRCL MA 435/15 disposed off . Nothing to he done
Sarfaraz Diwan & 101 by BDRCL.Railway wilt see further for disposal
others Vs Union of India  |of A

Railway authoruty to absorb the
petitioners as employees of
Railway who are working in BDRCL

MA No. 435/15 {CRB}, GIV/WR,
DRM/BRC, MD/BDRCL &
AGM/BDRCL
5 |High Court of Gujarat - ADI
Japdish Manilal Wasava vs
SCA 15200/2015
/ BDRCL
5CA 15201/2015 L Shahrukh Xhan Vs BDRCL
Challenged the termination and . .
\ - - Affidavit in reply on behalf of Respondent filed
SCA 15202/2015 award of iabour court's orders Swapnil B. Malviya Vs 14.03.2016 and still nothi ‘
under article 226,227 of BDRCL on 28,63, ) an nothing comes out.
Constitution of India Ferozkhan Pathan v Next date Is 20.08.2018
SCA 15203/2015 anvs
BDRCL
tmranali M. Shek Vs
SCA 1520412015
/ BORCL

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
BHARUCH DAHE) RAILWAY COMPANY

e

{Rajendra Kashyap} {Meenu Dang)
Place: New Dethi Managing Director Director
Date: 21.08.2018 DIN- Q0367378 DIN- 05171078
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
t




CS ANIL ANAND Arneaioe - 5

{Compuny Secretary in Practice)
102, G K House, 1st Floor, 187-4, Sant Nagar, Now Delhi — 110063
Pl 4610873925827 P-mail: csanilanand®s@omail.com
Rl iy

Date: 17.6G8.2G18

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31STMARCH, 2018
{Pursuani to section 204{1} of the Companies Act, 2013and rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,

The Members,

Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited
39-42, 3" Floor, indra Palace, 11 Block
Middle Circle, Connaught Circus,

Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corperate practices by M/s. Bharuch Dahej Railway
Company Limited (BDRCL) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provide us a reascnable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute hooks, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the informaticn provided by
the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinien, the company has, during the audit peried
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other

records maintained by Company for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2018 according
to the provisiens of;

(i} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act] and the rules made thereunder;
We have also examined compliance with the appticable clauses of the foliowing:
(i) Secretarial Standard issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
rules, regulations and guidelines mentioned above:;

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Directors
as per Companies Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried cut in compliance with the

S
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provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists {or
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions
of the Board were unanimously passed and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to mon tor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

S Ani! Anand
ACS: 10328
£ P No.:11295

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.08.2018
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CS ANIL ANAND

(Company Secretary in Practice)
102, G K House, 15t Floor, 187-4, Sant Magar, New Delhi — 110063
Pl =01-9873925627 E-marl: csanilanand9V0@ gmail.com

To,

The Members,

Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited
39-42, 3+ Floor, Indra Palace, [1- block
Middle Circle, Connaught Circus,

Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
Management’'s Responsibility

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the company to maintain secretarial records,
devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

reguiations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.
Secretarial Auditor's responsibility

2 OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the company with respect to secretarial compliances.
3 We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the company’s management is

adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion,

4 Wherever require, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance

of faws, rules, and regulation and happening of events etc.
Disclaimer

5

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affair of the
company.

ACS:10328 W3
CP NO: 11295 30y

Piace: New Delhi
Date: 17.08.2018
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STATEMENT OF FINAL ACCOUNTS




BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March 2018

Iz in Lakh |
Particulars ':‘q‘:}‘e As at st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017
I 1 SSETS U] |
(1}‘Non -current assets | : |
(a) Property, Plant and equipment | 3 | 4839 | 62.05
b) Other Intangible assets l 4 31.565.56 i 3180552
1 Intangible assets under 5o 5374 ! .
develo t | i i 4030
pmen ! i !
| (e} Financial Assets | 6 i
{iy Loans B1 11.88 | 10,85
(il} Others 6.2 4213 ‘ 38.03
{2) Other non-current assets T _ b=z6 31.731.90 ‘ 0.20 31.846.45
(2)|Gurrent assets |
{m) Financial Asscls a :
{iy Trade Recetvables 8.1 ‘ 7.774.05 4.462,1%
(iiy Cash and cash cquivalents | 8.2 4.609.51 212094
h ii . 351.0c
(il Bank Batances other than (i) | 8.3 | 1,351.02 7033 95
above | |
{iv] Loans | 54 5.42 ; 580
vy Mhers 8.5 553.14 | 87293
{(b) Current Tax Assets {Met) 18 82.28 82.28
{cy Qther current assets 9 .23 11,281.65 6.51 14, 584,60
Total Assets }7 T 43,013.55 45,431.05 |
I [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ] ‘
Equity l
(@) Equity Share Capital 10 15 511.00 15511.00
{hy Gther Enuity \ 11 3614.93 19,125.83 931.07 16 44207
1 L
Liabilities : |
{1} Nan-current liabilities ] i
\(a) Financial Liabilities 12|
{i} Borrowings 12.1! 13,352.86 16,122.44
{is} Trade Payables | 12.2 1.766.76 6.799.45
{b} Provisions ‘ 13 11.42 424
(gy Defarred Tax Liahilities (Net) 14 355650 2.046.13
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilit 161 57748 19,264.02 601.32 25,573.58
¥
{2)|Currant liabilities
{a} Financial Liabiliies 16
(1 Trade payabies 16.1 1.414.54 132869
{iiy Other financial liahitilies 16.2 2.683.42 292782
(b} Other current ligbilities 15.2 20326 168.79
{c) Provisions 1? 0.32 0.10
() Current Tax liability (Net} 12208 462360 | 0.00 4,415.40
Total Equity and Liabilities ]17 23,013.55 | 45.431.05
l

1

l

The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.

As per our Reporl of even dale altached

o FarB-8ingh & Co.
: rleteﬁ“i-\ccounlants

Membérsmp No. 0U8B41
Frm Registration No. 13510

Oale : 21-08-2018
Place; Mew Delhi

(75

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Bnaruch Dahej Railway Company Limited

Rajendra Kashyap
Managing Divector
DIN 00367378
N

Balkishan Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Meenu Dang
Director
DIN 05171078

S

Beena R. Shah
Company Sacretary
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BHARUCH DAHE) RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
]? in Lakh

For the year ended 31 March 2018
A

. Note i_For the year ended 31st; For the year ended
Particulars No. March 2018 31st March 2017
'Revenue - )
L |Revenug from pperations 19 6,657 44 522370
It |Cther incama 20 499.91 318,33
oot Total Ingorne {1 +11) . | 115738 6,043.02
V. |Expenses: ; :
QOperatian & Maintenancea 21 4 475,95 493557
Employae benefits expense .22 125.24 120.04
Finance cost 23 1,602.16 5.902.68
Cepreciation and amartization a5 1.284.35 5 1285816 °
Other 25 121.95 114,08 |
- Total Expenses {IV) ' T et280 8.367.39
V. |Profitoss Before exceptional iterms and Tax {IIf - IV} {455 15} (2.314.35}
Y. |Exceptianal items 26 5.844.60 -
Vil, |Profit!{Lass) before tax (V + V) 5,389.54 " 12,314.36)
Yl jTax expenss:
{1) Current tax 27
- Far the year ) 1.196.82 -
- Far earlier years (nat} - 35
[2) Deferred tax {net) 1.500.48 {426 .28}
2? _—— F— _4_
Total Tax Expense (I} 2 ¥06.00 (430713
1% |Profiti{loss) for the periad from continuing operation (VI - VIil) o T zp8354 (1,883 65)
X |Profit{lass) from discontinued operations -
¥l |Tax Expense of discontinued operations -
X1 {Profitifioss) from discontinued operations {afler tax) (X-X1) ) -
X1l |Profit/{lass) for the period (1{+XI1) 2,683.54 11,583.65)
XIV |Qther Comprehensive Income
A. (i) llems that will not be reclassfied to profit and loss 28 G.5C <013
{ity income Tax retating to llems that wil nat be reclassified to profit and loss AT 004
B. (i) Iterns that will be reclassified to profit and loss -
{iiy incame Tax ralaling 1o Items that will be reclassified to profit and Ioss -
0.23 £.08 |
X, Tota_l Comprehensive 1ncomg forlthe peried {XU +>$W} {Comprehensive 2683.87 {1,883.74)
profit and other comprehensive income for the period}
A |Earmngs Per Eguity Share
{Far Contnuing Operation)
{1} Basic 28 173 (1.27)
(2] Diluted 23 1.73 {1.21)
XKWL |Earnings Per Equity Share:
({Far discontinuing Operatian} !
{1} Basic - .
(2} Diluted - -
XWll.|Eamings Per Equity Share:
(For discantinued and continuing Operatian) P
{1} Basic 23 1.73 (1.2}
12} Diluted 29 1.73 (131
i

The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.
As per our Report of even date attached

o For 0 Bindh & Co. Far and an behalf of Board of Directars of
Chartefed Accountants Bharuch Dahej Raitway Company Limited

LN Gl Rajendra Kashyap Meenu Dang
Phrnar Wanaging Chrectar Director
Membership Mo, 036641 DIM 00367375 | DIW 35171078
Firm Registration Ma. 1351N : -

Date - 21-08-2018 Balkishan SHarma Beena R. Shah
Place. MNew Deti Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary

)



BHARLUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March 2018 - .
Tin Lakh |
. For the year ended 31st For the year |
Particulars March 2012 ended
31st March 2017
CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxation 5.38%.54 {2,314 34}
Adjustment for : ;
Depreciation and amonization 1,284 35 128516
Inlerest income [317.78) (77 74)
L.ozs{Piafit) on sale of assets 0.E9 : -
interest Expense 145443 o 152082 !
Dther Comprehensive INcome 0.50 {0.13)
Operating Profit before oparating capital changes 1) | 781173 ; 82.45
Adjustment for . o
Decrease ¢ {Increase) in Other non current financial assat ! [ERIiY ; (369 !
Cecrease / (Increase) n current inanciat Assets-loans ‘ G 3ad (9.13)
Decrease ! (Increase) in Non Current financial Assets-loans 11.33) -
Decrease { (Increasa) in Trade recewable . [3,311.85) B 553 04
Decrease ! {Increasa) in Other current financial asset 0an [140.34}
Decrease § [Increase)in Other current Assets C.z2ad 0.63
{Decrease) [ Increase in Trade Payables {8.03270) 1,956.74
{Decrease)} ! Increass in Leng term Provisions 7.18 ] 109 :
(Decrease) ! Increase in Current Trade Payables 8585 ! 186.93 :
(Cecrease) finerease n Other financial Liabitity A3.80 1709
(Decrease] ¢ Increase n Oiher Dabilities - 4447 45 4+
{Decreasa} ¢ Increase in Mon Current Liabilities Liabilitics [23.84} : BE.I7
{Decrease) ! Increaze in Short term Provisions 022 0z
) {3,151.68) 2,580.08
Cash genarated from opetation 142 {320.94) Y 3,06354 |
income Tax Paid {Net of Refunds) ) 1.074 78 £113.58} i
[NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACGTIVITIES w {1,414.70) 235015

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital Expenditure including Capital Advances (Met of Transfer of P,
Capital Assets) {1185 05} {53.90)

Decreasa | (Increase} In Bank Balance other than those taken ta Cash

and Gash Equivalent 558293 [426.072
Interest Received ) L 537.50 . T962
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES . [i=]] 5155.48 30165 |
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repaymeant of Bonowings {2,769.58) (1,810.000
Interast paid ! [1.682.83) {1,690.42)
NET GASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ' w© Lo T 35221 13,300.42)
HET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT . {A+B+C) (611_,43_] [48.62)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT {OPENING} D} 2,120.94 2.169.56
Cash
On Current Accounts 3094 919.56
Deposils with original maturity of less than three menths 1,510.00 1,250.00
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT {CLOSING) {E} 1.509.51 2.120.94
Cash
On Current Accounts 209,51 31094
Deposits with original maturily of less than three months 1.200.00 1,810.00
NET INGREASE iN CASH & CASH EQUIWVALENT {E-D} {511.43) (48.62)

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect methed as sel cutin Ind A35-7 on Cash Flaw Statament notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India under the Comnpanies Act, 2013,

Previuus year's ligures are reclassifiedregrouped to canfirm and make them comparablz with those of the current year.

For Q%l h & Co. Far and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chaﬂe{b ccountants - Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited

P
P i
ajendra Kashyap Meenu Dang L

] _ i ’ Managing Divect \\ Cireclor
T -Membership No. (98641 D GOSB?S?KV‘ i 051?10?6
Firm Reqistration No. 1351N

Dats - 21-08-2018 Balk|shan Beena R. Shah

Place: Mew Delii Chief FmanCIaI Oﬂ'cer Company Secretary




BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

. Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

A. Equity share capital

l? in Lakh

Particulars No. of shares Amount
Balance at April 1st, 2017 1,551.10 15,511.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
{a} issue of equity shares capital during the year
Balance at 31st March 2018 1,551.10 15,511.00
B. Other Equity g rrT L_a kh
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Total
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting
period 931.07 931.07
Changes in accounting poticy or prior period ]
arrors i
Restated balance at the beginning of the
repotting period 931.67 931.07
Profit for the period 2.6583.54 288354
Other Comprehensive income for the period 0.33 4.23
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 2,683.87 2,683.87
Dividends paid - .
Received during the period -
Share aflotted during the periad _
Balance at the end of the reporting period 3,614.93 3,614.93

The accompanying notes are integral part
of financial statements.
As per our Report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Bharuch Dahej Raitway Company Limited

[ -
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Partndr s Rajendra Kashyap Meenu Dang
Membership No. 098641 Managing Director Directar

Firm Registration Mo, 1351N

Date . 21-08-2018
Place: New Delhi
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BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31st March 2017

A. Equity share capital T"<‘“i'r1"_Lc‘;1 kh J
Particulars No. of shares Amount
Balance at April 1st, 2016 155110 15511.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
(a) issue of equity shares capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2017 1,551.10 15,511.00
B. Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Total
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting
period 2.814.81 2.814.81
Charges in accounting policy or prior period
arrors )
Restated balance at the beginning of the
reporting period 2.814.81 2,814.84
Profit for the year (1.883.65) {1,883.65)
Other Comprehensive income for the year (0.08) -0.08
Total Comprehensive income for the year - {1,883.74) {1,883.74)
Dividends paid - - _
Received during the year i} )
Share allotted during the year _
Balance at the end of the reporting pericd - 931.07 931.07

The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached

I Dws'ngh& Co.
rtere'd*}xcf;?untams

Simian Slngh
Partner

Membership No. 095641

Firm Registration No. 1351N

Date : 21-08-2018
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Bharuch Pahej Railway Company Limited

.:""FA
Py -
Rajehdra Kashyap
Managing Director
DIN 002687378

T

Balkishan Sharma
Chief Financial Officer
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Beena R. Shah

Company Secretary
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BHARUCH DAHE. RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

General Information

Bharuch Dahej Railway Company Limited {BDRCL) is a public limited company demiciled and was incorpgrated in India on November
15, 2006 as a Specigl Purpase Vehicte for the purpose of ex&culing the Bharuch-Samni-Dahej Gauge Conversion Project for Westem
Rathway. The company is a Joint Venture between Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL), Gujaral Maritime Board (GMBY. Adani Petronet
(Dahej} Forl Private Limited {APDPPL), Gujarat Marmada Wafley Fertilizers Company Limited (GNF(), Dahej SEZ Limited (DSLY, Jindal
Rall Infrastructure Limited {JRIL), Hindalca Industries Limited {HiL) and Gujarat Industrial Developrnent Corporalion (GIDC). The
registered office of the company is 39-42, 3rd Flsor, H Block, Middle Circle, Connaught Circus, Connaught Place. New Delhi- 110001,

The Company has entered into a Concession Agreement with Prasident of India, through Executive Drrector Traffic (PPP) of the htimiztry
of Railways (MOR]. Government of India. Rail Bhawar, New Dethi an June 25, 3008 in terms of which the MOR {Concessioning
Authority) has autherized the company {Concessionaire} to develop finance, constiugt, operate and maintain the project railway ang Lo
exercise and/or enjoy the right, power. benefits, privileges authorization and enlitlements upar its completion. The concession perind
shall be 30 vears of operation or till such tine as Net Present value {NPW} of payback on equily investment becomes 14% whichever o

earlier In case such NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the cancessian agreement would stand terminated and the project
line wauld be re-possessed by railways.

The company has also executed a lease dead on the same day with the President of India for the use of leased assets which forms part
of the concession agreement and is attached as annexure-1 thereto. In lerms of the lease agreement it commencas on the date of
execution ie. June 25, 2008 and term of lease shall be co-lerminus with the Concession period with annual lease rantal (a) for onginal
{and of WR- as per the extant policy of MeR, (b) for new land acquired by WR- @ Rs. 1/- per annum, is payable in advance in one single
installment in first week of January every yaar,

Upon expiry, the company is required to hand over the project assets to MoR free from all encombrances whatsoever. Upan transfer the
company shall be entitled to receive amount equal to book value of project assets. Fresh land acquired by MoR and leased ta company
shall also revert back to MoR an payment of an amount equal to the cost of acquisition.

Later, at the instance of Western Railway the line was exlended from Bharuch o Chavaj a distance of 552 KM. This additional BG
goods ling was certified as it safe to run on 20.02.2014 and same was in aperational since 27th February 2014 tar running of goods train
parallzl to DN line on Mumbai-Delhi Rajdhani roule of Yadodara Division.

The Concession agreement referred to above envisages signing of an Cperatians and Maintenance Agreement (O&M Agresment) by
the company with VWestern Railway for nperation of the railway line. In terms of the proposed Q&M Agreement, the company is entitled to
a share of revenue from pperations of the Bharugh-Samni-Dahej raitway line. As per communication received fram (he Westarn Railway,
revenue has been apporionad to the company w.e.f March 8, 2012 the date of cammencement of operalions of the Bharuch-Dahej-
Bamni railway line. Accordingly, March &, 2012 has been treated as the date of completion of the Bharech-Samni-Dahej Gauge
Conversion Project and the company has started to prepare the Profit & Loss Statement w.e.f March 8. 2012.

Process far signing an Q&M Agreement by the Campany with Western Railway is underway. In the meantime, the Company is recatving

its share of revenue after adjusting cost of Operation & Maintenance based on in principle approval received fram the Ministry of
Railways.

The financial slatements are authorised for issue in aceordance with a resclution of the Baard of Directors on 21-08-20148

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance
The Financtal Stalements for the year ended 31st March 2018 have been prepared, in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ing-

AZ) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 and Companies
{indian Accounting Standardsy Amendment Rules 2017.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following item
that have been measurad at fair valug as required by relevant Ind-a

i. Gertain financial assels and liabilities maasured at fair value (Refer policy for financial instruments)

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of financial slaterments in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting palicies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilitizs at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates includes
future obligalions under employee retirement benefil plans, estimaled useful fife of praperty, plant angd equipment and Intangible Assets.
Actual results may differ from these estimatas.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periadic basis. Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates
and difference between the actual result and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known /materialize.

All financial information presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest fakhs up to two decimals except where
otherwise stated.

Statement of cash flow

Cash flows are reporled using the Indirsct method., whereby profit / {loss) before tax is adjusted for the effecls of transactions of non-

cash nature and any deferrals of accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the C'gmpalrayzvgre seqregated as per Ind AS-7.




For the purpose of presentalion in the Statement of Cash Flow, ¢ash and cash equivalenls include cash on hand, deposits held at gall
with bank and financial institutions, olher short term, highly liguid investmant with original matusity of three months or tess that are readily
convertible to the known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

Amendment to Ind-AS7

Effective Aprill, 2017, the company has adopted the amsndment to Ind-AS 7, which require the entities to pravide disclosures that
enable users of financial Slatements to evaluate changes in iiabilities arising from financing activities. including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggasting inclusion of  reconcilistion between the opening and cfesing balances in the

Balance Sheet for habilities arzing from financing activities, to mee: Ihe disciosure regurrement. The adoption of amendment did not
have any material effect on the financial statements.

2.5 Functional and presentation currency

ilems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of lhe PrmMary eConomic envirdnment 1n which the Company

operates. {i.e. Functional Cirrency). The financial statements are presented in indian rupees. which is company's functional as well as
presentation currency of the company.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

2.6.1 Property, planl and eguipmeni are stated at cost less accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses. if any. Cost of asset
includes the following:

a) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

b) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items &restoring the site on which it is located if recogaition
criteria are et

26.2 Subsequent costs are included in the assels carrying amoaunt or recognized as separate asset, as appropriate. only when it is
prabable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and ¢ost of the item ¢an be measured reliably.
The canrying amount of any component accaunted for as a separate asset is derecognized when such component is replaced. All ather

expenss in the nature of repair and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profits and Loss during the reporling peried in which thay
are incurred as per Ind AS 16.

2.8.3 As per management estimate there is no decommissioning . restoration or similar liabilites on its property, plant and equipmant
hence. no adjustment in has been made in this regard.

2.6.4 Depreciation

2.6.4.1 Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment is provided on Straight Line basis {SLM} over the useful life of the assels as
specified in Schedwie 1 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{b) Each part of an item of Property. Plant and Equipment is dapreciated separately if the cost of part is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item and useful life of ihat part is different from the usefu! life of remaining asset.

2.6.4.2 The estimated useful life of assets for current and comparative periad of significant items of properly plant and equipment
are as follows:

Particulars Useful Life {¥Years)

Mant and Machinery 15

EDP Assels 3

Office Equipment's 15

Furnilure and fixtures 10 ;
Wehicles 8 !

2.8.4.3 Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease from the year in which such improvemenls are capitalisad or
useful life as computed under schedule Il whichever is less.

2.6.4.4 Depreciation methods, useful kves and residual values are reviewed at each reporting dale. In the case of revision, the
unamortised depreciable amount is depreciated on a prospective basis.

2.6.4.5 Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipmenl is depreciated separately if the cost of that part is significant in relaticn to
the total cost of lhe item and useful fife of that part is different from the useful life of asset

2.7 Intangible Assets

2.7.1 Freight Sharing Right {Railway Line under Service Goncession Arrangement)

The company recognizes an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has a right to charge for usage of
the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset received as consideralion for providing consfruction or upgrade services in 2 servigs
congession arrangement is measured ai fair value on initial recognition by reference to the fair value of the services pravided.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is staled at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs. less ascumulated
amartizalion and accumulaled impairment losses.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the pericd from when the company is able to
charge the public for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the cancession pericd (ie. 30 year of operation or Net present Value
(NPV) payback equal lo equity invesiment @14% whichever is earlier).

Freight sharing right is amortised using the siraight line method on prarata basis from the dale of addition or from the date when the right
brought in to service to the expiry of 30 year of operalion or Net present Value {MPV) payback equal to equity inveslment @ 14%

whichever is earlier. b

/51)
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Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each r
prospective basis.

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impaiment annually or
that the carrying vatue may not be recoverable

eporting date, with the effect of change in estimate accounted for ap 3

more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate

2.7.2 Other than Freight Sharing Right

Intangibie assels are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the

enterprise and Ihe cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at histarical cost less accumutated
amortization and impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets other than freight sharing right are amortised in 3 ¥ears or according 1o the useful iife of the assets on pro rata basis.

2.7.3 Freight sharing right under development

Expenditure incurred on development of existing and new assets tincluding revenue sharing rights in respect of project railway) are
recognised as Intangibles under development at cost ineurred by company which is reckencd as fair value of SEMVICes provided including
cost directly attributable including fair value adjustment of land related to the service concession afrangement.

The faliowing amounts are raduced from the cost:

a) Interest earned on the Mobiization Advances given in respect of the projoct exacution.
b} Amount received on sale of tender

investment properties

2.8.1 Investment property uomptises completed property, properly under construgtion and property held under finance lease that is held
to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production or
administrative functions.

2.8.2 Investment Praperties are stated al cust, net of accumutated depreciation and acoumulated impairment losses, if any.

2.8.3 The company depraciates building component of investmenlt propeity over the life described in scheduls Il of com panigs Act 2013
from the date of original purchage.

2.8.4 Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of ar
and no future economic henefit is expected from their disposal. Difference belween the
Ihe asset is recognised in profit or lass in the period of de-recagnition,

when they are permanently withdrawn from use
et disposal proceeds and {he carrying amount of

Provisicns

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be reguired to setlle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best eslimate of the expendilure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date.
Provisians are reviewed at each Balance Sheel date.

Provision which are expecled to be seltled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by using pretax discount rate that
reflects (he risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

In respect of Operation & Maintenance expenses through Western Railway {WR), same are accounted for on the basis of information
recaived from (WR). Whenever such information is not recerved, same is accounted for on pro-rata estimated basis,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

a} Revenue from Railway Operation

Apportionment of freighl as acecrued to the Gompany under terms of the concession agreement for freight operation on the project assets
is recognised by the company as operating revenue as per IndAS 18 fi.e. actual freight collected by Railways}.

b} Construction Contract Revonue under SGA

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognized based on the stage of
complstion of the work perfermed, when the outcome of conslrugtion contract can be measured reliably and where the outcome of
construction contract can not he measured religbly | revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract cost incurred that is probable
will be recoverable,

c) Other Revenue Recognition

Interest in¢ome on Fixed Deposits with Bank is recognised on a fime proportion basis taking into account the amount oulstanding and
the rate applicable using Effective Intersst Rate Method.

Leases
2.11.1 : Finance Lease

Finance leasss, which effeclively transfer to the company substantially alt tha risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
assel, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value and present vaiue of the minimum lease payments al he inception of the lease term
and disclesed as leased assets, Lease payments are apportioned hetween the finance charges and reduction of the tease liability based
on the mterest rate implicit in the lease. Finance charges are recognised as borrowing costs in the statement of profit and loss.

- b~
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2.11.2 : Operating Lease

Leases are classified as operating lease whenever the terms of the lease doesnt transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership to the lesgsee.

Operating l2ase paymenis are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and lagss on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except where the rentals are structured to increase in ling with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary
cast incraase. Contingent renials arising under operating lease are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS-36 on Imparrment of Assets, the carrying amaunts of Company's assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date to determine whether there is any indicalion of impairment. if any such indication exists, the asset's recovarable amount is
estimated as the higher of the Fair Value jess cost to sell and the value in use. An impairmeant logs is recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment lgss
recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount and such losacs
gither no longer exists or has decreased, Reversal of impaired loss is recognizad in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or produchon of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as parl of Ihe cost of such assets fill such time the assets are substantiafly ready for their intended use, A qualifying asset is
an asset that necessarily requires a substantial perfod of time to gel ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Bencfits:

The undiscounlad amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid for the services rendered are recognised as an expense
during the period when the employees rander the services.

b} Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits:

{i) Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund are defined contribution schemes. The contributions o the provident fund are
charged 1o the statement to the Profit and loss for the year when the contributions are due.

(i) Under the defined retirement plan, the company provides retirement obligation in the form of Gralvity, For defined retirement plans,
the difference between the fair value of plan asselts and the present value of plan liabilities is recognised as an assets and liabilities in
the statemenl of financia! position. The cost of providing benefit is determined on the basis of actuarial valualion using the projected unit
credit method at each year-end and is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss.

{iiiy Provision for long term Leave Encashment is made hased on actuarial valuation at the year end.

{iv) Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprohensive income

{v) Re-measurements recegnised in other comprehensive income comprise of aciuarial gains or losses that are not reclassified to profit

ar loss from olher comprehansive income in subsequant periods. Retirement Benefits Liability in respect of Gratuily and leave
encashment is provided on the basis of actuarial valualion.

Taxes

Current income tax

a}i. Current income tax is determined as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act in respect of taxable income for the year.

by Current income tax assets and liahilities for current and prior perieds are maasured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to Ihe taxation authorities. Liability for additional taxes, if any, is provided / paid as and when assessments are completad,

¢} Current tax related to OC! tem are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (00C1).

Deferred tax

a} Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for lemporary differences which is computed using the tax rates and tax laws
that have been anacted or substantively enacted at the raporling date.

b} Ceferrad income tax asse! is recognised to the extent that it is prebable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductinie temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax iosses can be atilized.

¢} The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to lhe exlent thal it is no longsr
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred income tax asseat to be utilized.

d) Deferred tax relatad ta OCI tem is recognised in Olhar Comprehensive Income (QOCL).

Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company
will pay normat ingome tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of

tha MAT credit asset s written down to the extent there 15 no longer a convincing gvidence 1o Lhe effect that the Company will pay normal
income tax during \he specified period.

2.16 Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to eguity shareholders. The number of shares
used in computing basic eamings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the partod. In determining
diluted earings per share, the net profit atiributable to eguity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2,17 Contingent Liakilities and contingent Assets

{a) Gontingent Liabilities are disclosed in gither of the lollowing cases:

{iy A present obligation arising fram a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setlle the
obligation; or

{if) A reliable sstimate of the present oiligation cannol be made,; or

" -
{jii} A possible obligation, unless the ity of outflow of resource is remote. C \ o
s R
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{b) Centingent Liability is net of estmated provisiens considering possibte autflow on setflement.

(e} Contingent Liability and Provisions needed against Contingant Liability and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Reporting date

{(d) Contingant assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Fair Value Measurement

Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date Fair value is the price that would be receved Lo sell
an asset or paid to ransfer a liability in an orderly transactien batwesn market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transter the liability takes place sither;

+ inthe principal markel for the asset or liahility, or

« Inthe absence of a principal markel, in the most advantageous market for the azset ¢r liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must ba accessible to the company. The fair value of an asset or a kability is measured
using the assumptions hat market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best intergst. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstarices and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimizing the use of unebsearvable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalements are categorized within the fair value
higrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the farr value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoled {unadjusted) market pnces in active markets for idenfical assets or liabililies

- Level 2 — Waluation lechnigues for which the lowes! level input that is significant {o the fair value measurement 18 directly or Indirectly
ohservable.

- Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest lavel input that is significant te the fair value measurement is unobservabie.

For assets ard liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowesl level input that is significant to the Fair
valug measurgment as a whole) at the end of each reporling period.

At the reporing date, the Company analyses the movemenis in the values of assets and liabilities which are required o be re-measured
or re-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the lates! valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and Yability wilth relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Dividend to equity holders

Dividend paidipayable shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are approved by shareholders or board of directors
as appropriates.

Financia! instruments: -

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Al
financial assets and liabliities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or

issue of financial assets and financial liabililies, hat are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to or deducted from the fair
value measured on inilial recagnition of financial asset or financial liability.

a. Subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Financial assels are classilied in following categories:

a} At Amoriized Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following condilions are met;

(1} the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in arder to collect contractual cash flows
and

{iy The conlractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sokely payments of principal and
interest an the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less impairment if any, The EIR amortisation is
included in linance income in the statement of profit and loss.

b} At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

A debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTGC! if both of the following criteria are met;

+ The objective of Ihe business modal is achievad both by collecting contractual cazh flows and selling the financial assets, and
* The assel’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FWTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair valug
movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income {OCI), However, the company recognizes interesl income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recogrition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recagnised in QC| is reclassified from the eguity to PEL. Interest earned is recognised using the EIR mathod. QL

b}
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©) At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assels. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FYTOCH. is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designale financial assel. which otherwise mests amortized cost or FYTOCH criteria, as at FVTPL.
If doing s0 reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency The company has not designated any financial asset as
at FVTPL.

Financiat assets included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the P&L.

Financial liabilities

a) Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables. seeurity deposits and retention money are initially
recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

) Financial liabilitics at FYTPL

The company has nol designated any financial liabilities at FyVTPL,

¢. Derecognition

Financial Asset

A financial asset {or. where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised anly when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assels and substantially all risks s and rewards
of the ownership of the assol.

Financial Liability

A financial liabiily is derecognised when the abligation under the liability is dischasged or cancelled or axpires. When an exsting financiaf
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabifity are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liabilily and the recognition of a new liability, and
the ditfarence in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the income statement,

d) Impairment of firancial assets:

Company applies expected credit loss {ECL) rmodel for measurement and recognition of impairmeant loss. The Company follows'
simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment oss alfowance on frade recsivable, The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss aliowance based on lifelime ECLs at each
reparting date, right from its inttial recognition

Company assesses on @ forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ity assets carrisd at amartised cost and
FVTQCH debt instruments. The impairment methodology applies on whether there has been significani increase in credit risk.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as incomelexpense in the statement of profit
and lgss,

Non-current Assets held for Sale

MNon-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when thajr carrying emount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The sale is considered highly pratrable only when the asset or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is untikely that the sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within ane year fram
the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at he lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held far sale.
Assets and liabilties classified as held for sale are presented separately in the statement of financial positien.

If the criteria staled by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discantinued Operations” are no longer met, the disposal
group ceases 1o be classified as held for sale. Non-cusrent assel hat ceases la be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of {i} its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for dapreciation that would have been recognised had

that azsel not been classified as held for sate. and (i) its recoverable amount at the date when the dispozal group ceases to be classified
as held for sale.

2,22 Events occurring after Balance Sheet Date

Evenls occurring after Balance Sheet date are considered i the preparalion of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS 10
{Contingencies and Events Occurring After Balance Sheel Dats)

2.23 Standard issued hut not yet effective for the Financial Year 2017-18

a) IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MGCA had notified IND AS 115 on Revenue from Conltracts with Customers on dated March 28 2018 The standard establishes a new
five step model that will apply to revenue arising from Contracts with customers, Under ING AS 115, revenue is recognized al an amount
that refiects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitied in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in IND AS 115 provide a more struclured approach to measuring and recegnizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IND AS,

The effective date of IND AS 115 is annual periods beginning on or after st April 2018. The Company is required o adopt the standard
by the Financial Year commancing 1st April 2018, The Company is currently evaluating the requirements of IND AS 115 and has not yet
determined the impact on the financial statements. -

— T
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Nota: - 3
Property, Plant and Equipment

Zin Lakh |

EDP Office Furniture & Plant & Leaschold N Total Tangibile
Particulars Assets  Equipment Fixtures Machinery  Improvement Vehicle Assets

Cost or Deemed Cost

At 1st Aprii 2018 11.63 12.84 15.62 26.52 15,76 14.19 96.56
Additions 0.74 - 1.52 - - - 2.6
Disposals 162 - 0.30 - - - 1.92
At 31 March 2017 10.75 12.84 16.84 26.52 15.76 14.19 8580
Additions 0.83 0.40 038 158
Disposals 158 [ 158
At 31 March 2018 10,00 13.24 1719 26.52 15.76 14.1% B6.90
Deprecigtion and impairmert

At 1st April 2016 3.51 2.91 1.83 1.34 5.20 1.88 16.77
Depreciation eharge for he year 447 3.08 2.0 179 520 1.98 1850
Disposals 0.38 - 0.03 - - 24z
At 31 March 2017 7.58 5.96 3.81 3.13 10.40 3.96 34.85
Depreciation charge for the period 1.36 285 203 1748 4 .54 1.98 14,55
Disposals 0.89 - - - - - 0 B9
At 31 Margh 2018 8.06 3.81 584 4.92 14.94 5.4 48.51
Net book valug

At 31 March 2018 1.94 4.43 41.35 21.60 0.82 B.25 48.39

At 31 March 2047 3.186 £.88 13.03 23.39 5.36 10.23 52.05

At 31 March 2016 8.12 9.83 13.79 2518 10.56 12.21 79.79

Note 3.1 Property, Plant and equipment are subject to first charge 1o secure the Company's Bank oans. For detail refer Note 12.1.3

Mote 3.2 As per managament estimats there 1s no decommassioning, restoration or similar Eabililies on ils propery plant and equipment hence, no
adjustment 1N has bgen made in this ragard.

Note: - 4
Other Intangible Assets

7in Lakh |

) Revenue
Particulars

f

Sharing Right Software Total
At Cost or Deemed cost
At st April 2016 33,580.94 1.3 3398225
Additian during the year 23726 - 237.9%
Adjustment - - -
At 31 March 2017 34,218.90 1.3 +4,220.21
Additien dufing the year 7.921.28 ) 1.321.25
Adjustment* 135,95 - 19505
At 31 March 2018 35,344.18 1.3 35,345.50
Amuprtisation and Impairment
At 1 April 2016 1,25T.12 0.91 1,258.02
Amartisation 1,266.58 0.08 1,266 66
Adjusiment - . .
At 31 Marck 2017 252370 0.99 252469
Amorligation 1,268.80 - 1,269 B0
Adwistment” -14. 54 - -14.54
At 34 March 2018 3,778.93 0.89 3.779.94
Nst book value
At 31 March 2018 31.565.24 0.32 31.565.56
At 31st March 2017 31,685.20 0.32 1,695.52
At 31st March 2016 32,723.82 Q.40 3%724.22

Note 4.1: Amortisation on other intangible assets included in Noke 24 "Depreciation & Amorhsation”.
Note 4.2; Intangible assets are subject to first charge to secure the company's bank loans. For delail refer Note 1213

Note 4.3: ““Dunng the year ended 315t March 2015 the Company has derecognised an arount of Rs 195.96 lakhs and amortisaticn amounting o
Rs 14.54 Lakhs pertaining to the land lease charges capitalised for the period December 2011 ta 7th march 2012 (From the date of tfrail run} in view

of the Railway Board letter dated 22.11. 2017 sefer nate 12.2.1 (‘\
{V@ .W‘/\; SR




Note: -5
Intangible Assets Under Development

ein Lakh |

Gross Amount
Particulars Asatist| Additions/ | TS | g sistst | Additionss | TTESfer As at 31 March
April 2016 (Disposals) | DETUENON |y o o017 | (Disposats) | Deduction’ 2018
P P Adjustments P Adjustments

Revenue sharing right under
development

Project Line No. 5 & Rail Level 213,73 50,60 23323 4010 1.335.81 131217 62.74

Platform

Other Projoct Assets - 473 473 -
Total 21373 64.33 237.86 40.10 1,335.81 1,31247 63.74

Note 5.1: The Intangible tnder development includes expenditure Incurred by the Company on the upgradation of the projact raikieay or 10 create
additional facility {interlocking of 1.ine No-5 at Dahef) thereon which give nee 1o future economic benefits.

Note 5.2 : During the year ended 31. Mareh 2018 the Gompany has recognized Rs. 131217 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs, 257 85 Lakhs) es
intangibles on completion of the works and accordingly, intangibles under development has been reduced by same amount

T




MNote: - 6
Financial Assets- Non Current

6.1 Loans
Tin Lakh
Particulars As at 3st March 2048 Ag at st March 2017
Security Deposits
Considered good 11.58 10.55
Total - _ 188 10,55
1
6.2 Other Financial Assets 1T in Lakh 3
Particulars As at 31st March 2018 Az at Mst March 2017
. . . 4213 3503
Receivable from Weslerm Railvays undor SCA {Refer Nofe 30)
Total i 4213 33.03
Note: -7
Other Non Current Asscts |q':",— - ST
X n Lakh |
Particulars As at 315t Mareh 2048 As at 31st March 2017
Capital Advances
Unseaured. considered good - Advances 1o related party
Advance for various Canstruclion works 0.20 Q.20
Total .20 .20

Mate 7.1 The Capital Advance amount to Rs. 0.20 Lakhs {31-03-2017 0,20 Lakhs Jrepresenting the amount paid 1o Mis Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited as projoect advance as per the Terms of Canstrustion Agresmant,
Amounl af I3 .20 Lakhs represents Lo old amaunt paid to RYNL lowards Advance for Electrical Work pending for adjustmant.

Mate:- §
Financizal Azsats- Currant

_
8.1 Trade Receivables < in Lakh i
Particulars Asg at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Unsecured, Considered good
Recewabla from rolated party :
Receivable from others T.7a.05 4,452 1%

Total Trade Receivable ) " anans 4,462.18

Male 8.1.1 The Trade Recewablis represent the amoun receivable from the Westem Railway being the revenus appotionsd, after
adjusting amount of O&M expenses payable,

Note 8.1.2 The revenue and expensas apportioted as above by the Weslern Railway arc on provisional basis and the fina; fiqures
may vary. Further Ihe amount of nel recesvatile as en 31 dMarch 2018 being Rs. 7774.05 Lakhs |31sl March 2017- Hs. 4.462.1%
Lakhs }is subjosct to confirmation by the Western Railway,

Mote 8.1.3 Trade Recoivables' represent apporticned earmings of BDRCL far chargeable distance of 10088 KW, However, such
Ramings have basn made availabie by Western Railway to BORCL onfy for chargeable distance of 92 Km between Bharuch and
Dahey

Mate 8.1.4 Mo trade or other receivable are due fram directers or other officers of the Company cither sewerally or |cintly with any

olher person. Mo any trade or oiher recrivablz are due from frm or peivale companies respeclively in which any direclor is a paniner,
a dreciar or member other ihan stated abowe

Mote 8.1.5 ‘Trade Receivable' includes a sum of Rs. 0.57 Lakhs [31st march 2017-Rs 0.87 Lakhs} due towards ONC Income from
Western Railways.

Note 8.1.6 Trade Receivable’ includes a sum of Rs. 1399 Lakh deducted from apportioned revenue by Western Railway on acoount
of land lease charges upto 315t March 2018 In accordance with Railway brard letler dated 22.11 2017 the same is now recoverable
from western Railway

o W




Mote:- 8.2 Cash and Cash equivaient

7 in Lakh |
Particulars As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017
Balances with banks:
On Current Accounts KI e 30094
Qeposits with original maturity of Iess ihan three mmitis 120000 1,810.00
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent ... 150051 .2,12084

Nete 8.2 4: Aalance n current accoants under cash and cash equivalents above mcludes lomd flexi term deposits Re. 265 53 Lakhs
1315t March 207 Rs. 264 47 Lakhs).

Nate 8.3 | Bank Balances otner than cash and cash eruivalent

e Tin Lakh

Particulars A= at 31st March 2018 As at 3ist March 2017
Lieposits with criginal maturity of moro than 3 months but less 1,350.00 7083.00
than 12 montks
Deposits with ariginal malurity for maore than 3 menths but less 102 0k
than 12 monihs (481 Guarnnino) o

Total s 08308

Mote 8.3.1: [s. 102 Lakhs [31s March 2017 Rs C.85 Lakhs] represents fixed deposit placed as YAT guarantee wilh the Sales Tax
Department of Yadodara, Cujaral pledgad with Sovt Authonties.

Mote 8.4 ¢ Loans

. [kintan

Particilars As at 31st March 2018 As at 3ist March 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good oo T
(&) Seourily depnsils 542

5.80
Total _ 5,80
Note 8.5 : Other Financial Assets-Current -
) - [?m Lakh |
Particulars Az at 31st March 2018 As at 315t March 2047
Unsecured, Considerad Goad
(a1 COther Reccivables
RUE Sharing Amounl from Westem Raileray and Indusirics
Commssione:s {Reter Note 8.5.1) 516 51 516,51
{bi Iterest Accruad on Fied Deposits 3040 35522
(o} Artvaner to cmplinees 0.42 113
(d] Receivahle from {Hhers ;18] 047
Total 55314 8§72.83

Note B.5.1 'Olher Receivables' represent recoverab'e towards the cost of 02 read hridges (constructed at Shakbnath Junction &
Hospdal Road, both in Bharuchy Cwen though the Concession Agreement specifically quantified BORCL's responsibility for
censtruction of such bridges as "Nil', these bridges had to be constructed based on orders of Minisiry of Railway, with sxplcit
undertaking of cost sharing between Western [Ralway & the Sovernment of Gujarat in the usual manner of construction of such
bridges over Indwan Rakway nelwork. The cosl of these brdges was Rs. §16.51. fakhs, to he bame by lhe two paries i.e Vestern
Railway & Government of Guiara An amount of Bs. 816.51 kakhs has accordingly been reduced from the value of Assets in the
bocks of BORCL. Howewer, oot of the [oitat amount of Bs. %15.51 lakh, only an amount of Rs. 4 Crores has been received from the
Governmant of Gujarat on 06.04.2011 and tha balante armount of A 516 51 Lakh s stlf recoverable from the Government ot
Guiarat and Western Railway.

Since the liability of BDRCL in this regard is clearly defined as zero in the Goncession Agreement, supporting he above posiion is 4
gdecision conveynd by Haibway Board vide [etter number Mo, 2(M5fnfral18/6 dated 23.11.2017 and the constreclion of the bridges
leak place one explicil orders of the Raiways with clear undertaking of sharing Ihe cosi with the State Government, expendiiure on
these bridges has necessarily to be home by these two parlies only that the cast of glimination of UMLCs on SPYs lines will be bom
by e Raways, Therelars same will be received in due course The matter ks being pursued with the Weslern Ralway and the Slate

Government vigoraushy.
?in Lakh

Mote 9: Other current assets

Particulars &s at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017
Advance o employees - 0.07
Advance for EXpEnses 0.0z 012
Prepaid Expenses 6.2t 632

Total 6.2 68




Note:- 10
Equity Share capital

|?in LakL_J

) Ag at 3ist As at 31st
I
Particulars March 2018 March 2017

Authorised share capital
16,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

{March 31, 2017 186,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 16,500.00 16.500.00

16,500.00 16,500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Share Capital with voting rights

15,51,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each with Voting Rights
(March 31, 2017 15,51,10,000 Equily Shares of Re. 10 each Fully paid up} 15.511.00 15,811.00

15,514.00 15,511.00

{a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital

. As at 31st March 2013 As at 31 March 2017
Particulars No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
{in Lakhs) {in Lakhs) {in Lakhs) {in Lakhs)

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equily Capital outstanding
at the beginning of the year 1.551.10 15.511.00 1.5581.10 15,511.00

Add: Shares Issued during the period
Sharas bouaght back during the period

Issuad/Subscribed and Paid up cquity Capital
outstanding at the end of the year 1,551.10 15,511.00 1,651.10 15,511.00

{b) Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares
The company has only one ctass of equity shares having par value of Rs 10/ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vole per share,

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distributing all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proporlion to the number of equity shares held ty the shareholders.

{c) Details of Shares held by each sharefhiolder holding mere than 5% shares in the company

As at 31st March 2018 As at 31 March 2047
Name of the sharehclder No. of Shares % holding in the No. of Shares % holding in
{in Lakhs) class {in Lakhs) the class

Rail vikas Nigam Lid 550.00 3546 550.00 3546
Gujarat Industrial Development Corp, 178 60 11.51 178 60 11.51%
Gujarat Maritime Board 178.60 11.51 178.60 11,91
Adani Petronet {Dahej) Port Private Ltd 173.30 11.17 17330 1117
Guijarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Company Ltd 135,30 B.72 13530 872
Hindaleo Industries Limited 135.30 872 135.20 8.72
Dahej SEZ LId 100.00 6.45 100.00 6.45
Jindal Rail Infrastructure Ltd 100.00 6.45 100.00 £.45
Total 1,551.10 104.00 1,551.18 100.00

{d) Aggregate no. of equity shares issued as fully paid by way of bonus, other than cash & shares bought back during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date

, Asat31  Asat 3% March Asat31March  Asat3d
Particulars March 2018 2017 As at 31 March 2016 2015 March 2014
Main lakhs Mo in lakhs No in lakhs Mo in lakhs Nao in lakhs

Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash -
Equity Shares issuted as fully paid up bonus shares
Equity Shares bought back

Total




Note 11 Other Equity

Tin Lakh |

. As at 3=t March As at J1st

Particulars i 2018 March 2017
Redained Earnings 361493 934,07
Total . 3e1as3 | 93107
Note 11.1 Retained Earnings . '
9 [ in Lakh |

] As al 31st March  As al 31st
Particulars 2018 March20t7

Balarce as per st financal statement

LT 2,814.01

Add: Prafitloss for the current pencd 2.862.54 (1.803.65)
Add: Qther comprehensive nceme ariging fram 0o 0oe
Remeasuraments of defined henefil oblination - T
Closing Balance 3614.93

Note 12 : Financial Liabilities-Non Current

12.1 Borrowings

Particulars As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Secured, Long Term Borrowings H
P Term | oans ! :

From Canara Hank . 16432 B85 2 52000 36,242 .44 ¢ 2,520.00

From Canara Bank 24000 2.640.00 242.0%

Less : Current Maturities of long 1erm debt

{Refer Nole 16.2) -2, TeC.00 -2. 760,00

} -
Total 13,352.86] 2,760.00 16,122.44 2,760.00
Summary of Borrowing Arrangement ———
12.1.1 Details of Repayment Made during the period ]? in Lakh :’

Particulars March 204 Mizrch 2017
g — .
Term Loan

From Cuanara Bank 2,409 57 1.400.02

I-rom Canara Bank 360.60 210.00
Total 2 7T69.57 1,610.00

121.2 Rate of Interest

Interest rate tor the poricd April "1 7 to March®18 is Canara Bank's MCLR 1+ 01.595% poa (31st March 2017 © The inerest rate for F ¥ 2016-17 was
(Canara Bank's base rate )

12.1.3 Security

Secured by way of first charge on all present and fulure immovatle and movatle fized assels of the company cxclding lhosc assets that Rave
heen wased by Ministry of Railvways as per 1he Concession Agroemont.

Secured by way of first charge on all the langible movahle property and plant of the company together with spares, tocls. accessories and other
mowvables bolh present and luture.

12.1.4 Repayment terms:

The aanual repayment v be sub-divided into four cqual quarerly nstaiments, Interest to be served at monthly rests. Door 1o door lenar of 15
year for Term Loan of Rs. 20,000.00 Lakns and Door to door tenor of 13 year for Term Loan of Rs. 3 000 00 Lakhs Repayment due for nexl one
year @ 12% 13 1st March 2017 - 12% of Tolal debt of Rs. 23,000 00 Lakhs.

! .
12.2 Trade Payables e T in Lakh ;
. As al Mst
Particulars
tu N 2018 March 2017
(i1 Culstanding dues of micro and =mall enterpnses
{iiy Cutstanding dues af alher than micre and small eaterprises
l.ang | ease Renlal Charpes {Refer Mole 12.2.1} - 0.526.80
General Overhead Charges 1,748 3% 126121
Central Charges 18.37 1134
Total 1,766.76 5,?’99_3?5'

HWote 12.24  The amoun of Rs. 552690 Lakhs appeanng as outsianding as on March 3151 2017 represent 1he amount payabke 10 YWeslemn
Hailway from the date of operalian {1.e. 0810 March 2012 1a 118t Maieh 2017 lowards Land License fecs in respect of land leased to DDRCL.
The Railway had been compuling e Land Licensea fees at 5% of the market valae of land. The rmarket vidue of land s indlated % cach year,
Howewver, this was being conlesled by BORCL as confrary to privaisscn in the Concession Agreement Company has received communicalion
frarm Minislry of Railway vide letter No. 201 Winfra1 2420 daled 22.11.2017 from the Micistry of Railways to pay the land |2ase rental charges @
1000/ p.a. in terms of Concession agreament from the date of incephan of project, Therefore amount outstanding as on 31, March 2017 of land

lease rantal charges amounling to Rs 5526.20 has been reversed and recognized as olher income {Excepticnal lem) in staternenl of proft and
loss (Refor Mote-26)




MNote 13 : Provisions-Non Current
' 1z in Lakh

Particul As at st March  As at 3ist
articuars 2018 March 2017

Employee Benefits
Grakuity

426 1.57
| zave Fncashmem 718 2.67
Total 1142 4.24

Mote 13,1 ; Provision for grataity and Leave Encashiment lability aas boen made tor the penoa coded 315 Maich 2018 based on Acluanal
Waluation. For ouher disclosures refer Noto -49,

Mote 13.2; Graiuity Benedit is payabie 1o employess on separation from the corporation. The amcourt of graluty pavable 15 hased on pas| service
ang salary af the time of separation as oer Payment of Gratuity act, 1972, Thede 1 & vasting period of 5 years on the beneft.

dote 14 Deferred Tax =
i< in Lakh [
F;‘ r-t'c. \ars oo T Ag at Zist March A= at 31st
rarioas o L oL 2018 March 2017
Bleferred tax habiily on
Propeny, plant & equipment and Infanqible Assats 45,1166, 04 E R
Total deferred tax liability 5,086, 94 4,635 85
Dieferred tax Assels
Employee benefit 446 1,41
Unabsorhed depreciabon 1,627.39 2,688 22
Total deferred tax asset ) 3as _2 .5-5?;?2_._.
Net Deferred Tax Liability! {Assets) o 3,555.50 2,045.13
Note 14.1 Movement in deferred tax Hability! fasset)
. - PPE 5 Unabsorbed
Particulars L Intangible Assels Employee Benefits . _Depreciation Total
Onening balance as at 1 April 2016 405812 {1.11) {1.575.534) 2,482 .46
Chargedijcredited) durng 2016 17
Ty Brofil & 1 oss E75.74 ] {1.042.67 {426.28)
To olher comprofcnshe inceme - (11 04) - 0,04}
Cigsing balance as at 31 March 2017 T 4,635.56 (1,50 {2,585 22) 2,046.14
Charged/{credited) during the poriod 201718 7
T Protit & Loss 451.00 -273 1,060 83 1.508.18
To olher comprehensive income s 0T
Closing balance as at 31st March 2048 e 5,086.94 14.06} {1,527 39} 3,555.50

In accordance with Ind AS-12- "Income Taxes® natified by Ministry of Corporate Alfairs, Government of [ndia, the Caompany has reassessed the
doferred tax laking nto consideration all the kems, dus to which there s lemporary difference belween the carying amount of the assets and
Ieabulilies and theis 1ax base a3 on 3151 March 2HE.

Hote 15 : Other Liabilities

‘Note 15.1 Other Non Current Liability . I n Laih
Particulars As at 3ist March As al 315t
- 2018 March 2017
Fair valuation adjustment of financial liabilitics* 57743 601 32
577.48 601.32

*It repregents unamartized portion of the dfference hetwean the fair value of financeal | abilities 1owards deferred overnead cost payable o inilial
recognilion! transitan date and Lasility dus towards deformed ovehead charges.

Note 45.2 : Other current Liability

Zin Lakh |
ParticLlare o As at 3stMarch  As at st
7048 March 2017
Statutory dues H.68 G0
Fair valugtion adjustment of financial iabiibes 196 57 152 89
Total 203.26 158.79

Mote 15.2 Statulory dues includes TDS. Service Taw! GST and Provident Fund payable. Q
—




16.1 Trade Payables

Zinlakh |

Particulars As at 31stiarch  As at 31st
e e 2014 . March 2017

{iy Dutsianding dues of micre and smafl emlerprises
{ii] Quistanding ducs of cther than micro &nd small enlerprises

Payable 1o Others 138217 1,285.34
Payable 1o retated parlies 32.37 Ju.3a
Total 1414.54 1,328.69

Note 16.1.1 The 'Trade Payates’ includes the amount payables fo Witsery Raimway towards Operahon & Mainenance expenditure. The

Pravisional outstanding balange amount of R 131511 Lakhs 1318t March 2017- Ra. 1,269.10 Lakhs ] is refated to the entire Dahej-Chavaj
sechen.

Note 16.1.2 The 'Trade Payables' includes the amount payable to Weslern Railway lowards Land Lease Rental Charqes computed in
aceordance to the Concession Agrasmenl.

Mote 18.1.2 There are no repered Miore, small and mediuom enerpases as defined in the " Toe Micra | Small andg Medwm enterorses
Cevelopment Act 2008 1o whom the company owes any amaunl.

Note : 16.1.4 Payable to related parties includes a sum of Rs. (110 1akng ¢ 3181 March 2017 Re 28.08 lakhe ) payabie 10 Rail Vikas Migam
Limited Refor nate 41 for related parly transaction and balances

16.2 Other Financial Liability

Particutars Asg at 315t March Asat st

- 2018 March 2017
Current maturities of Termn | oans {Refer Mot 12) 2,760.00 Z2.780.00
Secunty Deposils 75.80 284
Ieteresl acerucd and dun on borrawings 2472 152 82
Other Payabies 22 80 1206
Total 2,083.42 2,927 82

Note © 16.2.1 Cuevent talurity of Term Loan of R 2760 00 Lakhs (3 1st March 2007 Ry 2 760 | akhs ) represenl the repayment 10 be made

during nexl ane year equivalent to 12% [31st March 2017 - 12%]) 0° total Term Loan of Rs. 23,000.00 Lakhs in accordance wilh the repayment
schodule

Hote 17 : Provisions Current

Zin Lakh |

sariculars As at31stMarch  As at 31st
e - - . e e o8 MNarch 27

Employec Bennfits
Gratuity

0t 0.02
Leave Encashment 21 na8
Total ) 032 0.0
Note 17.1: For tiher disciosures refer Note 45
Mote: - 18 P
Current Tax Asset and Liability [T in Lakh -
Particulars - As at 31st March As at 3st
2018 March 2017
Currenl tax Assets
Income Tax Relundable
AN 201 F-2018 H2.28 H42.28
Total 8228 §2.28
Current tax Liahility
Inzome Tax Retundable
AY 2010-2011 G 25 G 28
AY 2012.2013 2186 218
Prowision for Income Tax (Nate 18.1) (244, [2.44)
Prowision for Income tax { Net of advanc lax & TOS) 122.06 -
Totat 122.06 0.00

Mete 181 Refund receivable for A Y 2012-13 of Rs. 2.16 lakh has been adjusted with demand of A ¥ 2008-10. thorefore: company has
provided for provision Tor tax fiability. However, company is contesting the demand and submilted its response to depariment for nos adjusting
demand. Further. 2 sum of 25, (.28 Lakh is receivable from income lax department for AY 201011, however refund is notissued since iong
therefore company has pravided for provision for sare during bnancisl yesr b7

2
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Note 19: Revenue from operations

Farticulars Year ended Year ended

31st March 2015 31st March 2017
[a} Income from Raiway Qperation 5,312.55 5159 57
(b) Construction Contracl Revenue under Servitg cuncassion
Arrangemert trefer note 30) 1,344 89 64.33
Total 6,657.44 U BIIBTI

Nate 19.1: Dperating Income. The Bharuch-3amni-Daheg Ratway line of reute length 81 80 xilameters became operational from
tarch £, 2012 and Bharuch-Chavaj line of route length 5.52 Kilometers became operational from 27th February 2054 with the
compleiicn of the respective portions of the project The operaling income of the company has been recagnized for the penod
from 1st April 2017 to 21st March 2018 for Bharuck-Samni-Dahej Railway line, wiih the revenue pestawing o Bharuen-Chava)
being compuled on provisional basis. The share of BORCL i the total revenue volected by the Railway al the time of loading 1s
compuled on the kasis of poreentage of chargeable distance iravelled on BORCL ling 1o ibe iotai chargeable distance travelisd,
While the Operation & Maintenance Agreament is yet 10 be signed with Western Radway, apportianment of ravenue is being
done on the basis of in-principle approval accorded by the Mimstry of Raitways

Note 19.2: The Ministry of Railways has allowed the Company to charge freight at inllated kilometers {50% inflated) for the
distance iravelled aver BORCL's jurisdiction. Therefore, as against actual distance of 67.12 kms on the Bharuch-Samni-Dahej
settian and actual distance of 5.52 km of Bharuch-Chavaj section constructed by the company, the tolal chargeable distance is
taken as 100.68 kms. Revenue pertaimng to Bharuch-Chavaj section has been accounled for on provisional basis.

Note 20 Other Income

Tin Lakh

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
315t March 2018 31st March 2017
(a} Interest Income
Bank Oeposits 37 7a 0774
COthers -
{b] Other Mon-aperating incoms
Unwinding ot discount on recewakble from Western
Ralways under Service Concession Arrangemend 409 369
Revarsal of Far valug adjustiment of Financial Liatities 173.71 104 31
{c} Miscellanecus Income 4.33 3.89
Total 499.91 #18.33
Mote 21 Operation and Maintenance Expenses ; -
% in Lakn |
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31t Warch 2018 31st March 2017
{@) Operatian & Maintenance Expenses 3,134.07 A 67124
b} Construclion Conlract Cost under Service Concession
Arrangement (Refer Mole No-30) 13544 89 B4.33
Grand Total 4,4?8.96" 493457

MOTE 21.1: In lerms of the draft Oparations and Mainlenance Agreement 1o be entered inlp with the Western Railway read
tegether with the Concession Agreement, the company has to bear the expenses incurred by Western Railway on the operation
and tnaintenance of the Bharuch-Samni-Dahej seclion and Lhe additionat line fram Bharuch 1o Chavay. The company has
recognized operating &xpenses of Rs 1916 87 Lakhs {Dunng the £ ¥ 2016.17 Rs. 3750 85 Lakhs) for the period from April MY
o March 2018 as advised by the Western Railway on provisienal basis in terms of the Qperation & Maintenance Agreement o
be entered into with the YWeslern Railway. The final amount of expenses to be bome by the company could vary.

Earlier the &M of Civil Engineedng and S&T assets was being carvied out by the Company but Western Railway has partially
taken aver maintenance of abowe mentioned assets from January 2016, with a few non-safety related activibes remaning the
responsibility of BORCL. Accordingly, the company has recognized O&M expenses on activities retained by BORGL relaled to
Civil Engineering ., S&T assets and ather activilies on radway seclion amaounting to Ps. 1277 19 Lakhs (During the F.Y 2016-17
Rs. 1120.39 Lakhs) far the period ending Marck 31, 2018

The above amount alse includes Operation & Mainlenance cxpenses on the extended section of the ling fram Bharuch to Chawaj
for the period from Aprt 2017 to March 2018 on proportionate basis to lhe extent 1L was determinable.

7Y



Note 22 Empioyee Benefits Expenses

ZTinlakh |

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2018

Year ended
Jist March 2017

Salary and Allgwances

Staff welfare expenses
Contributians 1o Providertt fund
Gratuity (Refer Note 48)

Leave Encashment {Refer Mote 45)

Totat

79.47 76.48
18.73 2571
18 40 1651
2.28 0.50
514 0.74
125.08 120.04

Mote 22.1 : During the period ended March 31, 2018 there are anly six employess in the company who are emplayed on long
term basis. All other employess ware appointed oy the cempany for a penod of swieleven months only subject to further

regularization if yequired.

Note 23 Finance Cost

< in Lakh

Particulars

Intsrest EXpensos
Term Loan
Other Interest Expenses
Unwinding of disceunt on deferred overhead charges

Total

Year ended
315t March 2048

Yeat ended
35t March 2017

1,454.43 3.820.46
- Q08

147.73 82.04

) 1,602.16 150256

Moto 23.1; Finance cost include interest paid 4o bank an Term Loan amounting to 1454 43 lakhs [During the F.Y 2015-17 Rs

1820.46 Lakhs) or the penod ended March, 31 2018

Notz 24 Depreciation and Amoertisatian

Particulars

31st March 2018

Yearended

315t March 2047

Cepraciation on Froperly, #lant and Equipment [Refer Mote 3} 14,55 18.50
Amorisation of Intangible Assels (Refer Nate 4) 1.263.80 1,266.86
Todal 1,284.35 1,285.16
Note 25 Qther Expenses T
]? in Lakh T
Particulars Year ended Year ended
3151 March 2013 31st March 2017

Power & Fus! 2.2 2.28
Repairs and Mamtenance 1.86 1.39
Legal and Professional Fees 2285 17.70
Audier Remurgration-

Audit Feas 608 a4

Tax Audit Fees 050 0.54

Qut of Pockel expenses - 0405
Intgrnal Audit Fees 1.71 1.48
Printing & Stalichery 2.07 1.57
Meeting & Canterence 425 10,18
Communicalion Expensa 1.68 2.36
Travelling Expense 1476 11.39
Rates & Taxes 0.75 D36
Rent 35.29 35.64
Miscellanzous Expense T.16 8.50
Corporate Social Responsibility 1747 16 81
Tatal 121.95 114.06

mmm—————




Mote 26 Exceptional ltems

|?'in Lakh ]

Year ended ‘Year ended
Partieulars 315t March 2018 31st March 2017
Land Lease Rental Charges 5,844 69 -
Total I 1 N
Mote 261

An amount of Rs. 5,526 .90 Lakhs, representing the amourt payahble to Western Railway from the date of operation {i.e. 08th
March 2012 to 31st March 2017) towards Land License fees in respec! of land leased to BDORCL was outstanding as liability
payvable to Reilways as on 31sl March 2017 The Railway had been computing the Land License fees at 8% of the market value
of land. The market value of land 15 mflated 7% each year. However, this was contested by BDRCL as contrary 1o provison in the
Concession Adreement. The amaunt of Rs. 5,526.90 Lakhs was computed 2fer taking inte account 8 recovery of Rs. 459 lakhs
effected by Western Railway cut of toial compuked liaoiity of s, 502550 Lakhs

Out of 1otal liability of Rs. 60239 Lakh an amount of Rs 18595 Lakin [MNet of armortization Rs. 187 42 Larn) was racsgmmsaa ax
inlangible asses.

Cornpany has recewed communicatian frem Ministry of Railway vide letter Mo, 2017 nfra!1 2/20 dated 22 .11.2017 fixing the dand
lease rental charges @ 1000:- pa  Therefore fiability of Rs. 80259 Lakh Wwarde Ralways stand extinguished, and the
outstanding liability how reduces to Rs 0.02 lakhs as on 315t March 2018,

Dunng the penod ended 31, March 2018 Company has recognized income of Rs 5884 69 Lakh as cxceptional wem by reversal of
the outstanckng liability of Rs. 5526 .90 Lakhs towaras land lease remat charges &5 on 3181 Marcen 2017, deretonnizing other
intangible asset of Rs. 185.86 Lakhs, wrile back of amonization reserve of Rs. 14.54 lakhs and recognizing receivable of Rs
459,31 Lakhs from western railway towards the amcunt afready recovored during the previous years and adjusted i lhe books.

Note 27 © Taxes

Note 271 Income tax recognised in profit and loss [ oy o
¥ in Lakh |
. Yearendad Year ended
Particulars 31st March 2018 31st March 2017
Current Inceme Tax Expenses

Currant Tax on profits for tha years 1186 B2 -

Adjustrents inrespact of currenlincome las of orevigus yoar - nay

Total Current Tax Expenses o 1,196.82 5.57
Deferred Income Tax Expense

In respact of the current year 180818 (436.28)

{For details Refer Note nn 14)

Total Defored Tax Expenses 1,509.13““ e _*?53:6’-2%;
income tax expenses attributakls to continuing operations 2,708.00 (430,71}
Mote 27.2 Tax related to items recognlsed in QG during the yaar: i?: in Lakh
Particuiars Year ended fear ended

3151 March 2018 3151 March 2017
Mel lossfigary on remeasurements of defined banealil
mans {Refer Note 14) a7 Lo4
Ineome tax charged to OC| 1017} 004

Note 27.3 Recanciliation of tax expense and the accountlng profit multiplled by India's domestic tax rate {for 31th March
2018 and 31st March 2017: T

[z in Lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended
3st March 2018 31st March 2017

Al g"ﬁrofit' hefore tax from continuirg
apargtions 5,389.55 (2.314.36)

Prafiti{loss) batare 1ax fram a discontinued operation -
Accounting profit before income tax §,389.53 {2,314.28)
At India's statutory income tax rate of 21 3416% (31si March 2017 1.150.21

21.3418% )* -
Tax effect of amounts which are not

deductible {taxatle) in calculating taxable

income

Add: Tax effect due to rransition to IndAS 4550
Add : Boak Loss .
Add @ Taxable Incame 011
Add : Deferred Tax recegnised in statement of profid and ioas and 1.500 35 1435 28)
Add; \ax expenses for Ihe previous year .57

At the effective income tax rate of 50.21% (31st
March 2017 18.61%}) 270617 (430.71}

Incame Tax expenses reported in staternent of profit and loss for 270617 {436.28)
current year

Tax expenses for préviouns year recognised 5.57

Income tax expenses reported in statement of Profit and loss 2,708.17 {430.71)

%



‘Presently, the Company has been paying Minemumn Alternate Tax (MAT) on the book prefits under sectan 115-JB of the income
Tax Act. 1961 due to availing of deduction fram the: laxable income under section BO-14 of the tncame Tax Acl. 1961, Therefore,
Tax rate appticable for MAT ie. 21.3416% has been taken instead of regular rate of ncome tax 34.64%.

Note 28 Compenents of Other Comprehensive Income [OC1)

The disaggregation of changes ta OC | by sach type of reserve in squity is shown below T
|€ in Lakh
—r— e aeem am- — e
‘Year ended Year ended
Pamewtars ... 31st March 2018 3st March 2047
Remgasurements of defined benefit plans 0.50 -0.13
Tax component af remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (047} 004

Total .33 -0.08

Remeasurements of defined benefil plan includes R 49916/ towards actuanal gain {Frevious Year Re.12 747/ towards
actuariat loss en Prejected benetit obligation.

g‘«-.__,“"/g‘ Y — e = e
P -
-

(6%)



Note 29 : 'Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended 315t Year ended 31st
March, 2018 March, 2017
{" per share) (" per share)
Basic EPS
From continuing operation 173 (1.21)
Diluted EPS
From continuing operation 173 (1.21)

29.1 Basic Earning per Share

Basic EPS are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to equity holders of the company by
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

The earning and weighted average number of equity share used in calculation of basic earning per share:

. Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
1

Particulars March, 2018 March, 2017

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company (Rs. In lakhs) 2,683.54 {1,883.65)

Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earning Per Share (Rs. In lakhs) 2,683.54 (1.883.69)

We{ghted average numbers (In Lakhs) of shares for the purpose of 1.551.10 1.551.10
basic earnings per share

29.2 Diluted Earning per Share

The eamings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted earning per share:-

. Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
i

Particulars March, 2018 March, 2017

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company (Rs. In fakhs) 2,683.54 (1,883.65)

Earnings used in calculation of diluted earning per share (Rs. In lakhs) 5 583.54 (1.883.65)

The weighted number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earning per share reconciles to the weighted
average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
March, 2018 March, 2017

Weighted average number (in Lakhs ) of Equity shares used in

calculation of basic earnings per share 1,551.10 1,551.10

Effect of dilution:

Share Options - _

Weighted average number {in Lakhs) of Equity shares used in

calculation of diluted eamings perishare: 1,551.10 1,551.10

A
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BHARLCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Kote 30: Service Concession Arrangements

Public-to-privale service concession arrangements are recorded acrarding to Appendix “A" Service Concession Arrangements” IND-£5-11 . Appendix A
Servine Cancession Arrangements applies if:

ab The Granter cantrols or regulates which services the operater should provide with the infrastructure, to whem it must provide them, and at what price;
and

by The grantor cantrols- through ownership, beneficial entitlemeant, ar otherwvise- any signiftcant residual interest ir tha infrastructure at the end of the tarm
of the arrangemeni.

If beth of the above canditions are met simultaneously, an intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operater recewes the right to chargs users of
the public service. provided that these charges are canditional on the gegree to which the service is USed.

These intangible assets are nitially recognized at cost, which s understood as the fair vaws of the service provided pius otiver direc: costs diractiy attnbutabls
o the operatien. They are then amartrzes over the (erm of the cancessian

The Bharuch Dahej Raiway Company Lursted (Cempany) has entered into a Concassipn Agreement with Ministry of Railways (MeR), Government at India
dated June 25, 2008 in terms of which the Ministry of Railways {Grantor; has authorized the Company {Operator) to develop, tinance, design, engineer,
procure, constnsck, operate and maintain the Project Railway and lo exercise andior enjoy the rights. powers, benefils, privikeges autharizations and
entifliements wpan its completion. In terms of the said agreement BORCL has an ohlgation to complete construction of the projeci railway and 10 keep the
proyect assets in proper working condition including all projests assets whose lives have expirad.

The concessian peried is determined with reference to attainment of NPY payback banchmark at the rate of return of 14%.The concession periad shall be 30
years of operalion or Ll the NPV payback equat to equity investment is reached, whichever is earlier tn case the NP payback 15 reached earlier than 30
years, the concession agreement would stand terminated and the project ine would be re-possessed by railway.

At the end of concession peried. the project assets shall be hand aver by BDRCL w MOR and BDRCL shail be entiied to recewe and MOR shalt pay to
BDRCL an amount equal to the Book value of rew assels and additsonal ‘aciities craa‘ed by the BORCL. The original existing assets leased to BORCL by

WMOR shall revert back to MOR. The fresh land acquired by MOR and leased to BDRGCL shall also reveart back to MOR on nayment of an amount equal 1o the
cost of acquisition

In terms of the above agreement upon expiry of 30 years of operation the concession pengd shall be exended by an equal period of time which corresponas
lo the period far which matenal disruption of operation and maintenance occurred during the concession pericd. Howsver such extensicn will be limited o
provision that if NPY payback equal to equity investment is reached earlier then the period so extended . the concession period would stand terminated.

In zase of material breach in terms of the agreement the MOR and BOHRCL both have the right to terminate the agrecment if they are not able {e curg the
event of default in accordance wath such agreement

The Operalien and Maintenance of the praject railway s being conducted by MCR through Weastem Railway (WR) under its right, vide draft agreement under
finalisation. which is co-terminus wilh the Cancession Agreerment. entered inlo between the MoR and BORCL. Fudher, in terms of thie agreement, 'WH s in
performance of Cperation and Maintanance of Project Railway from Chave] to Dahey via Bharuch, & total distance of 67,12 Kms. BORCL v to pay O8M cost to
VR,
Sections. (a} Bharuch Station ta Danej Statian measuring approximately 81 80 kms,

(0} Bharuch station 1o Chavaj Staticn measuring approximately 5 52 ks,

For the penod ended 315t March 2018 the company has recognized revenue of Rs. 6557.44 Lakhs { 31st March 2017 5225 70 Lakhs).consisting of Rs.
134489 Lakhs { 313t March 2017 Rs. 64,33 Lakhs) on construction of intangible assets under servige concession arrangement Rs. 531255 Lakhs (31st
NMarch 2017 Rs. 5.152.37 Lakhs) lowards sharing af apparticned eamings from operation of railway line under service concession arrangement, Company has
racognized prafit before tax of Rs 5380 54 Lakhs { 315t March 2017 loss of Rs. 2.314.36 Lakhg} ,consisting nit profit on construction of intangsble assets under
5ervice concessan arrangement and a profit before tax of Rs. 5388.54 lakhs (314! March 2017 loss of Rs. 2,314.36 Lakhs) towards shating of sapportienad
earnings from operation of railway line under service concessan arrangement. The company has recogrized an intangible asset of s, 1321.26 Lakhs during
the period ended 21st March 2018 and Rs. 237 96 Lakihs, in F.Y 2016-17 The intangible asset under development represents the freight sharing nights under
development to receive freight traffic earnings under semnce concession agreement. The company has recognized receivable under service concession
arrangement measured at a amortized cost of Re 42 13 {akhs { 318t March 2017 of R's. 358.03 Lakhs) repiesenting the prasent value of fresh land acquired by
MOR af 441 B0 Lakhs [ 31st March 2017 Rs. 461 80 Lakhs) leased to BORCL and from GIOC amounting to Rs. 2416 {315t March 2017 Rs, 24,16 lakhs )

which ia recovarable at the end of concession perod from MOR, discounted at a rate of 10.75 percent, of which Rs. 11.51 lakhs (Previows year Rs. 7.42
Lakhs ) represents unwinding of discaunt

Note 31: Capital management

The company abjective o manage its apital In a manner to ensure and safeguard their ability te continue a3 a geing concern so that company can conlinue o
provide maximum ceturns to share holders and benefit 1o olher stake holders.

Further. company manages its capital structure to make adpastments in ight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial

cowenants. [he company maintain an cptimat capital stracture of Debt equily 1o reduce the cost of cap:tal. The company's dehls inciuges interest bearing
borrowings from banks.

|z in Lakh
Farticulars I o As at 31st March As at 21st
: 2018 March 2017

Borrowing [Note Mo, 12.1}

16,112,864 18,882 44

Net debt 1811288 18.882.44

Equity {Mote Ma. 10} 15.511.00 15.611.00
Sther equity (Note No. 11) 361483 331.07
Total equity 19,125.93 15,442.07

Net Debt to equity ratio 48:54 £3:47

No changes wers made 10 the obiectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 315t March 2IM8




Note 32: Fair Value Measurements
(i) The carrying amount of financial Instruments by Category are as follow:

¥ in Lakh
31st March 2018 . -—- st March 2017
Particulats q .
FVTPL  FyTog Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial Assets o
{1} Recenanle from Westere
Railways unter Service - - 2213 - 3803
LONCASSIaN arrangement
it Trade Receivables - - 7.774.05 - 448212
{liit Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,509 &1 - 2.120.94
(v} Bank Balances other than {iil) 1351 02 . 7.033.95
above - N
{v) Security Deposits - - 17.30 - 16,35
{wn) Others 55314 - a732.43

Total Financial Assects . - - 11,2475 Co 14,544.35°
Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings - - 16,112,586 - 13 832.44
(i) Trade Payables - - 3.181.30 - 8,128,14
(iii) Other financial liabilities - 12342 18752
Total Financial Liabilities - - 19.4i7.88 - T 27,178.40

(i) Gomparisan by clase of the camrying amounts and fair valua of the company’s finangial instruments. other than those with carry ng amounts tnat are

reasonaile approximates there fair values are naot presented since fair value of all financial instruments as on reporhing date approximatesrtlﬂr carrying_valug,

Zin Lakh
i 31-Mar-18 T #i-Mary
Particul i
articuars C\?;mz‘g Fair value Carrying Value Fair value

Financial Assets

[ Receaivable from Western Railways under Service 4213 a7.24 3803 a0 4%
CONCession arrangement

Financiai |iability

Trade Payables{deferred Cverhead Charges) 1,768 76 1855.85 1,272.55 1.2¥9.32

1,808 89 1,823.20 1,310.58 132981

(iii) The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other shart term recewvables and other financial labikties are considerad to the
same as their fair values, due 1o short term nature.

{iv) Long term wvariable rate borrowings are evaluated by company an parameters such as interes! rates, specific country nsk factors and other risk factors.
Based on this evalualion the fair value of such payables are not materially different from ther garrying amount.

{v] The amortsed cost of recenables from railways under service concession arrangement were caloulated based on cash flows disceuated using lending
rate.

Fair Value higrarchy 3% on 31-03-2018

|2 in Lakh
Particu s Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Asgets
Financial assets at Amortized Cost
Receivable from Western Railways under service concession arrangement - - 67.24 67.24
Financial Liability
Trade Payabtles(deferred Overhcad Charges) - - 1.855.95 1,655.95
- _ - 1,923.20 1,823.20
Fair Valug hierarchy as on 31-3-2047 le 7T T
Zin Lakh
Pariculars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assels
Financial assets at Amortised Cost
Receivable from Wastermn Railways undsr service cancession arangsment - - S0.45 H0 439
Financial Liability
Trade Payables{deferred Overhead Charges) - - 1,279,322 1,279.32
- - 1,329.81 1,328.81




Financial risk management

The Compary's prncipal financial liabilihes comprises trade payables. borrowing and other payables The main purpose of these financial labinties is to
finance the company's operations and to provide guarantess 1o supporl its operatian The Company's principal financial assets nclude trade and other
receivables and cash and eash equvalents that derive directly from ite cpeeations,

The Company is expose 10 markel risk, credit risk and liquidity sisk. The company financial risk activities are governed by appropriated paolicies and
procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed In accordance with the campanies palicies and risk objectives. The board of directars
reviews and agrees pelicies for managing each of these risk, which are summarised belaw ;

a] Market Risk

Markel risk 1s the risk that the far value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market pricas Market risk
comprises \nterest ratg risk Financial iInstruments affected Dy market sk includes deposits and cther non derivative financial mstruments

b} Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that he fair value of fulere cash flows of a finaneial instruments will fluctuate because of change m markat imarest rate. "he
company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates pnmarily to the company's exposure to change in market interest rates primarily to the

compary's long tarm debl obligation with floating interest rate risk The company manages its nterest risk in accordance with the companies paicies and risk
abjective.

¢} Credit risk

Credil fisk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a custamer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails te mesat ils contractuzl obligations. and arises
principatly from the Company's receivables from cuslemers. The company is exposed i credil ek from its financial activities including opcrating activibes
{primarily trade raceivabla) daposits with banks and cther financial instruments

fi} Trade Recetvable

Customer gredit risk is managed by company's estabhshed polcy. precedure and control refaling o custorner gredit risk management. Quistandang
cuslemer raceivable are ragularly monitored and an impairment analysis is padfarmed at each reporting date on indnndual bases for major custamer The
company does not hold any collateral as security

{ii} Finangial instrumeants and cash deposits

Credit risk from batanees with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the companies policy. Investment of surplus are made anly
with approved wath counterparty an the basis of the finanoial quotes received from tha counterparty.

o) Liguidity risk
Liltimate seapanaibilily for liquidity risk managemant rest with the board of drectors lhe company manages maintainng adequate banking facilties by
continuously maonitaring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturities of financial labilitios.

Note 33: Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and the key sources of estimation uncartainty al the end of the reparting period that may have a
significant risk of causing & material adjustrment to the carrying armount of assets and liabilities with next financial year.

a) Fair valuation measurement and valuation process

The fair values of linancial assets and finansial liabilites is measured the valualion technigues including the Discounted cash Aow model. The wputs to these
methed are taken from cbservable markets where pessible, but where this 15 not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Jutgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and velatdity Changes in assumptions about thease factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. ‘falue of recievable from Vfestarn Railway is fair valued uswmg inlerest rate @ 10 79% and vale of overnead
pavable is discounted using cureni lending rate e 9% (10.759% previous ysar)

b} Useful lifz of Properly, plant & equipment

Ag described in note 2.6, Useful life of property plant and equpment are based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolesces, demand.
compelition, internal assessment of user experance and other economic factors and level of maintenance expenditure required te abtain the expected future
cash flows from the asset [he Company reviews the useful Ife of property. plant and equipment at each reporting date.

¢} Useful fife of Intangible Assets

As described in nole 2.7, company has eslimated the usefut live of intangible assets (Intangible under service concession arrangementy is 30 years for
amorlisation of intangible assels, As per service concession arrangement if NPV payback equal 1o equity investment & 14% is reached easlier lhan 30 years,
the concession agreement would stand terminated and the project ling wauld be repossessed by railway.

As descrbed innots 2.7 - Intangible Assests athet than freight Sharing right sompany has estimated useful life of 3 years in case of computer scftware.
The financial impact of the above assessment may impact the amorsation expenses in subsequant financal years

d} Defined benefit plan

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and ather post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An acluarial valuation involves making vanous assumptions that may differ form actual developments in the future. Theas include the
determination af the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved i the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions Al assumplions are reviewsd at each reporling date. The parameter mest subject 1o
change is he discaunt rate In determining ihe appropriate discount rale for plans | the managemenl considers the interest rates of government bedies in
currencies consestent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

e} Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the exient it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which tax assets can be

utiized, Significanl management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recagnised, hased upon the tikely timing and
lewei of future taxabte profit together with future tax planning strategiess.
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Note 34: Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure requred in IND AS-11 "Construction Contracks” as notified in the companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2016, the amount

ransidered in the financial statements up o the balance sheet date are as follows L
Tin Lakh

Particulars As at SZ‘LE';';March 315;;u:|$rch

134489 8433
1,344.89 64.33

Revenue Recogrused on exchanging construchon services
Aggreaate amount of costs incurred and recognised

Mote 35 Ohtigation under operating lease
35.1 Lease of offise buildings

The Company has laken its corporate office on lease on payment of monthly rentsl of Rs. 1 69 lakhs plus applicable taxes, for an mitial iack-in-period of three
(5% years which 1s up to 10th Oclaber 2020, As per the tenms of the agreements, the lease can be renewed for snother twe terms of three years each at the

aption of the lzssee. In case of renewal, the rent payable shall be increased by 15% for each successive three years term over the last paid rent of pravious
term.

lpases are as follows. R in Lakh __
Particulars o o 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Within one year o 33.26 9.29
After one year bul not more than five years 7447 -
Maore than five years _
0743 929

35,2 Leased Assets from Western Railways
\Western Raiway (lessor) has leosed all the existing assets as per concession agreement and the land to be newly acguired witf all rights, easements for the
project Yo the company {lessee) for the duration of concession agreement.

Company shall pay o the lessar, an annual lease rentai of Rs. 1/ pa in case of new land acquired by Western Raibway and as per extant palicy of the Ministry
of Balways {as revised fram time to tiwe) for the original land of Western Railway, which shall be payable in advance in the Brst week of January every year .
Upon expiry. the Company is required to hand over the leased assets to Ministry of Rallways (MoR|] free farm all engumbrances whatsoever If the concession
period is exlendediranewad beyohd concession period. tne fease agreement shall also ta he extendedirenewad atterms to be mutualy decided by the parties.

The Company has taken lease assets fram Miniatry of Ralways under nan-canceliable operating lease.
As rent payable is dependent on the extant policy of Ministry of Raitways which changes from time to time, therefore it 18 not possible for the company 1o
determine and present the future minimum |gase rentals payable.
Lease Rental expenses duing the yaar in respect of gperaling leases
Particulars

31-Mar18 31-Mar-17
‘Gross Lease Rent ’ —_—

(a) Delh office

2218 20.21
b}y Vadodara office 13.72 12.895
(c) Resthause - 0.56
Mat Lease Rent 35.92 33.82

Hote 38: Contingent Liabilities
Claims not acknowledged as debts by the company

i) M!s Rail Vikas Nigam Limited has demanded management fees of Rs. 183517 lakhs { Rs 133217 lakhs upto 31st March 2018) Upto (1st Aprl 2015
181470 lakhs) towards construgtion af the project.

i} The Company had received a Show Cause Netice {SCN) dunng financiat year 2014-15 from tax authorities in the matter of applicablity af service tax an the
Cormpany in respect of appartioned freight received by the Company from Raiways The SCK caverad a parod of three years fram financial year 2011-12 to
financial year 2013-14 and invalved serviee tax of Rs. 1633 lakhs plus interest and penalies The Company contestad the SCN and submitted its position
through a rejoinder thereen Lo the adjudicating aulherities, pleading thak no service is rendared by BDRCL to Western Railway that might warrant liabinty to
pay Service Tax. The Company managed to obtain relief from the Commmssioner of Service Tax vide her order dated 25.01.2016 and has, therefore, not

provided far the ameunt in the aforesaid claim in its books for the above perod. However, the department has filed appeal with CESTAT against the arder af
Commissioner for the same period, which will be contested an similar lines.

Subsequentiy, the tax authorities issued another SCN to the Company an the same grounds invalving a demand of Fs. 16348 Iakhs plus interest and penalbes
for FY 2014-15. The company has duly submilted its reply to the adjudicating authoribes for withdrawal of the claim in the aferesaid SCN an the same
grounds a5 pleaded in the carker rgjoinder Since the Company's stand is based on sound pringiples and immutable facts, and it had received a favorable
ruling Irom Commissicner Service Tax, on the earlier oceasion, it 1s confident that no additional liability on account of Service Tax will davoive on it. The
Company hag not yet recetved any adjudicatian order :n the mater

Further, the tax aclhorities issued anather SCN o the Company on the same grounds invalving a demand of Re. 1614 85 lakhs plus interest and penalties for
EY 2015-15 on 215t March 2018, the company has duly submitled its reply to the adjudicating authonties for withdrawal of the claim in the aforesaid SCN an

the same grourds as pleaded in the earlier rejoinder.
r/ﬂ/gvf—/ _
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) The &L expenditure partaning to Bharuch-Chavaj section has been provided in financial statements to the extent information provided by ‘Westera
Railway and nformation avattable with company, remamning O M wil be provided in the year in which information will be received Fom Railways

i) Company has terminated some contraetual employees, due to miscondust at wark place and unauthorized absence fram office, Aggrieved by the decis:an
of the company employeas have filed application with Labour court for compensation towards ther fermination. However based an the facts of the case
company expects favaratis deciston. Financiai impact of same s net ascertainahble

Note 37: In the opinion of the Board of Directors and to the best of ther knowledge and belisf. the aggregate vaiue of the Current Assets including Current
financial assets on realization in the crdinary course of business wilk not be tess than the amount a: which these are stated in the Baisnce Sheat.

Note 38: Capital commitment
Capital commetment is Estimated at Rs. 3.0685 Crore ¢31s! March 2017 22 Crare ).

Note 3%9: Forgign eurrency transactions
Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Mil {Previous penod Nil)
Income in Foreign Gurrency

Nil {Previous period Nil)

Note 40: There are no reported Micro. Small and Medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micre. Small & Medium Enterprises Developmeni Act 2008 to
wham the company owes any amount
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Note 41 @ Related Party Disclosures
41.1 Partles to the joint venture agreement

41.1.1 Related Parties held equify of company

As at 31st March 2013 As at 31 March, 2047
Mumher of % holding in Number of S
Name of Party shares held in that clasgof shares held in % hoiding in that
Lakhs shares Lakhs ciass of shares
Rail ¥ikas Migam itd 5E0.0C 35.4B% 530 00 35.4584%
Gujarat Industrial Development Corp. 178.60 11.581% 178 60 11 51%
Gujarat Maritime Board 178 60 11 81% 17860 11.51%
Adani Patromet (Dahejy Port Private Ltd 173.30 11.17% 17330 11 17%
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers Company Ltd 13530 BT2% 135.20 B.72%
Hindales Industries Limaited 135.30 8.72% 135350 §.72%
Dahey SEZ Ltd 100,00 B.45%, 163,00 6.45%:
Jindal Rail Infrastructure Ltd 100.00 5. 455% 100 00 G 45%,
188110 100.00% _ 1.651.10 100.00%
41.2 Key Managerial personnel of the entity
Name Designation
Mr. Ajit Pandit {From 14-02-2018} Direstar
Rir Anirudh Jam (Feom 17.01. 2017 10 31.07 2017 Director
#r. Rajendra Kashyap (From 12.08 2014} Managing Director
Wr. Winay Singh (From 11.01.2014) Diractor
Mr A K Singhk {Fram 2555 2018) Director
Mr Sagal Mittra {Fram 26.11.2018) Dhrector
Ms. Chavi Jha (Ceased 20 09,2017} Crirector
Br Ajay Bhadoa Director
Or Meenu Dang {Fram 20.09.2017) Director
Mr. §. P. Chaturvedi {Ceased an 11.08.2017) Independant Director
Ms Bela Baneree (Ceased an 11.08.2017) Independent Director
Ms. D Thara (From 02.08.2016 to 0Z.08.2017) Directar
Mr. Balkishan Sharma Chief Finansial Officer
Ms. Geana R, Shah Company Secretary
41.3 Disclosure of bransaction with related parties: ) R
17 in Lakh
0‘::22:':9 Outstanding
Transactions Transactions Amount Payable/
Payahlef .
) Rs.) [Receivable) (Rs.} (Receivablg)
Particulars {Rs.)
[Rs.]
Year ended Year ended Yearended  AsatMarch 31,
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2047 2017
Rail Vikas Migam Limited
Expenditure of Wadodara office apportioned
Conference and 3eminar Expenses reimbursed 5.00
Project expenditure in terms of construgtion agreement 23.64 - 40.04
Closing Balance 0.10 208,05
Guijarat Industrial Development Gorp.
Amount paid towards Lease Rent! Water Charges 237 -0.02 1.38 0.10
Adani Petronet {Dahej) Port Private Ltd
Insiallation of weigh Brndae - -
Loca Hire Charges 21515 12 86 -
Closing Balance 32.08 - 530
ey Managerial Personnel
Remuriaration 47.50 45.38 -

41.4 Compensation of key management personnel:
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was ag follows

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Stst March o 0ot March 2017

2018
Shaort-term benefits 47 B0 45 38
Total 4750 4736

e
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Note 42: Fayment to Auditors

—

Payment to the Auditars comprises of the fallowing: TinLakh
——_—
Year ended
) Year ended

P 1st M

articulars SIstMarch g1t march 2017
2018

Audit Fee 602 384
Tawx Audit fees 0.0 0.54
Out of Pocket expenses - 6.08
Tota! 6.68 444

Note 43: Corporate Social Responsibility

With the enactmant of the Companias Act 2013 and the Companies
by MCA, the company has undertakean activities as oer TSR pouc
C3SRin accordance with Section 235 of companies Act 2013,

Note 44: The company has only ane reporable sepment viz opcration of freight traffic. “heratore requirement o segment rapa

Note 45 : The company has accounted far the empioyee's benaiit SXpenses in accerdance with
Carparate Affairs, Gavernment of fndia. The summarised position of Post-employment benefits and lang-term em

Statement of Profit ang Lass and Balance sheet a5 per Ind A3 19 are as under-

45.1 Change in present value of obligation:

{(Corporate Social Responsibiliy) Rules. 2014 read with various clarificaticn issued
y Upto 31, March 2018 the comeany has ncurres a sum of Re 17.48 Lakhs towares

rtirg 15 not epplicable

ind A3 19 "Empioyee Benehits’ notifed by the Ministry of

ployee bengfits recognised in the

[2in Lakh ]

Partioutare 201718 201817
Gratuity Earned Leave Gratuity Earned Leave
Opening Balance 1.59 2.74 0.96 2.28
Interest Cost .22 .37 0.08 018
Currant service cos! 0.87 1.64 0.43 072
Past Sarvice Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses 208 3A3 - -
Banefit paid - -0.52 - -0.28
Actuarial {Gamn)f Loss on obligation -0.50 -0.50 .13 -0.16
Closing Balance 437 7.37 1.59 2.74
45.2 Change in fair value of Plan Assets
. Z017-18 201617
P lar
articulars Gratuity | Earned Leave Gratuity Earned Leave
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
FExpected return on Plan Assats - - - _
Emplover's contribution - - -
Benefit Paid - - - .
Actuarial {loss) gain on Obhgations - - - -
Closing Balance - - - —
45.3 Amount Recognised in Batance Sheet < In Lakh
Particulars 201718 2016-17
Gratuity Earned Leave Gratuity Earned Leave
Estimated Present Valug of gbligations as at the end of 4.37 T.av i 89 274
the year
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the Year ) ) h -
Net Assets! (Net Liability) recognized in Balance 4.3F 737 155 274
Sheet
45.4 Expenditure recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss o T
g Tin Lakh
Particul 201718 2016-17
articulars Gratuity Earned Leave Gratuity Earned Leave
Gurrent Service Cost 0.97 1.64 0.43 0.72
Past Service Coslincluding curtailment Gains/Losses 208 383
Interest Cost 0.22 0.37 0.08 3.18
Met Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in the year -0 50 -0.50 - -0.18
Total expenses recognized in the Statement of 277 5.14 0.50 .74
Profit and Loss
L
o a YT
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45.5 Expenditure recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

lzinLakh |

Particulars 201718 2016-17
Gratuity Earned Leave Gratuity Earngd Leave
Net surwlative unrecognized actuarial gain' (toss) - - - --
opening
Actuarial gain/ {loss) for the year on FEG 0.50 -- R —
Aetuanal gand (loss) for the year on the assats - - - -
Unrecognized Actuarial gain/ (loss} al the end of the .50 - {0.13) -
year
45,6 Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year in current and non-current.
Particulars 201718 2016-17 ]
Gratuity Earngd Leave Gratuity Earned Leave
Current Ligbility{Amount due with in one year ) 014 | .24 240z ' 0.08
Men-Currant Ligbility(Amount due over Dre year 426 7B 1.57 i 267 ¢
Total PBO at the end of the year 4.37 7.37 189 | 2.74
45,7 Principal actuarial assumption at the Balance Sheet Date = 1
P v 1T in Lakh i
Particulars 201718 2016-17
(Sratuity Earned Leave Gratuity Earned Leave
Discount Rate Ak TF1% 7.547% ¥.B49%%
Expected rate of ieluin on Plan Assels - - B .
Expected rate of Salary Increase 5 50% 3 5% 5.50% 5.50%
Method used Frojact Unit Credit
45.8 Maturity profile of defined benefit abligation is as follow: P T
Zin Lakh |
Period Effect on Gratuity [Eftect on Earned
ohligation Leave
April 2016 to March 2012 0.11 0.21
April 2019 to March 2020 0406 172
Apnd 2020 o March 2021 1.1 012
April 2021 to March 2022 no7 012
April 2022 ta March 2023 0.04 o1
April 2023 to March 2024 0.46 011
A prit 2024 onwards 230 4.93
45.9 Sensitivity Analysis For the year ended 31 March 2018 .
T in Lakh
. Effzct on
Particulars Change in Gratuity Effect on Earmed
assumptions L Leave
obligation
Discount Rate 0.50% {0,309 iD.52)
-0.50% Q.33 0.59
Salary Growth | 0.50%: .34 3.60
| -0.50% £0.30% [0.54}

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawats are not material & hance impact of change nel calculated.

Sensilivities a8 to rate of inflation, rate of inerease of pensions in paymant, rate of increase of pensions bofore retirement & life expactancy are not

applicable being a lump sum banefit on retirement.
45,10 Mortality Rates for specimen ages

Mortality rate for both Compensated absences and gratuily are as under-

Age Mortality rate Age [Mortality rate [Age Mortality rate

15 0000614 45 0.002874 75 0.0396357
20 0.000885 50 0.004946 80 0 0B0558
25 0.000984 45 0.0078858 g5 0091882
30 I 0D10RE &0 0011534 90 0138895
35 0001282 &5 0.017009 95 0.208585
43 0.O01203 0 { D25855 100 0.311628

45 11 The estimatos of future salary ncrease, considered i actuarial valation, take aceount of inflation. seniunly, pronotion and other relevant factors, such as supply

and demand in employes market

45,12 The Company provides for Gratuily for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act 1872, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of five () yaars
are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuty paysble on retirementterminahon of the employees is lasl drawn basic salary per ok computed proportionalely for 35

days salary multiplied far the number of years of service

4513 The amount of liabilities 1s as per the repon of a

F‘/{/"’/( J
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Mote 46 : Impairment of Assets
©n the basis of rewew, the management 1s of the apinion hat the econoemic performance of nan financial assets of the Campany is not lower than

expected and therelore therg is no impairment of any assels as on the Balance Sheat date

Note 47 : Obtigation to Restore project assets to specified level of serviceabifity

In terms of Concesaon agresment, tharg is an abligation on the Company to keep the project assets in working conditon. including making
replacement, as per laid down standards of MOR, of all project assets whose codal lives expire dunng the concession pericd  Accaordingly, Company ig
required to provide for in respect of replacement obligations arising during the remaining coneession penod as per requirement of Appendix A of the Ind
AS 11 for best estimate of expenditure required to scitle obligation. However, at present there reliable estimate for restoratian abligation is not available,

thereforae provision for same is not provided in financial staternents, the same will be provided in the year in which estimate becomes reliablo.
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Mob. No.: 9818692412, 9810331572
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BHARUC\H DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bharuch Dahej
Railway Company Limited. {"the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. (herein afier referred o as "Ind AS financial statements”)

IE

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect 1o the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
n equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thersunder

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularifies; selection and
application of appropriate accounting pelicies, making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an optnion on these Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Acdl, the accounting and auditing
standards and matiers which are reguired to be inciuded in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit {o obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements, The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so reguired and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and its loss, including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a. The opening balances and the comparative figures disclosed in the ind AS
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are based on the audited
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 on
which our Auditors’ Report dated September 20, 2017 expressed a qualified
opinion. The matters which resulted in the qualification inter alia included the
prospective application of Appendix A to Ind AS 11 from the transition date on the
first Ind AS financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2017. The
Company had opted to apply this appendix from the transition
date prospectively as the Management did not find it practicable to apply this
appendix retrospectively. Based on audit procedures and gueries made, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to ascertain that
retrospective application of Appendix A to Ind AS 11 was impracticable as defined
in Ind AS 8 to avail the exemption of Ind AS 101. Consequently, we were unable

to ascertain the impact, of the above on the Ind AS financial statements of the
company”

In view of the above, any adjustments to the opening balances as at April 1, 2017
that would have been required may have a consequential effect on the Company's
assets and liabilities as at Apnit 1, 2017 and March 31, 2018 and its results for the
year ended March 31, 2018, and the presentation and disclosure thereof in the
financial statements.




b. Reference is drawn to Note No. 47 of the Ind AS financial statements on

Obligation to Restore project assets to specified level of serviceability. In terms of
Concessicn agreement, there is an obligation on the Company to keep the project
assets in working condition, including making replacement, as per laid down
standards of Ministry of Railways, of all project assets whose lives expire during
the concession period. Accordingly, Company is required to provide for in respect
of replacement obligations arising during the remaining concession period as per
requirement of Appendix A of the Ind AS 11 at the best estimate of expenditure
required to settle the obiigation. However, the company has not estimated and
provided for the aforesaid obligation in the financial statements. In the absence of
information, we are unable to ascertain the impact of the above on the ind AS
financial statements of the company.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 19 & Note No. 21 to
the ind AS financial statements, The Operation and Maintenance Agreement with
the Western Railway that defines among others, right & obligations, the share of
Income & Expenses to be appertioned to the Company arising out of the operation
of the Bharuch Dahej Samni Railway Line by the Company has not yet been
signed. The Company has however recognized the operating income and
expenses arising out of this arrangement which is yet to be formalized.

We further draw attention to Note No.19 and Note No. 21 to the Ind AS financial
statements. The Operating Income & Operating Expenses accounted for by the
Company are based on provisional figures made available by the Western

Railway and the finai figures could vary. Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of
this matter.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 19 and Note No 8.1
to the Ind AS financial statements. The income from Railway Operations of
Rs 5312.55 lakhs (previcus year ended March 31, 2017; Rs 5159.37) includes
revenue amounting to Rs. 386.67 lakhs (previous year ended March 31, 2017
'Rs. 418.98 lakhs) pertaining to Bharuch-Chavaj section computed on provisional
basis. The revenue recognized is outstanding as Trade Receivable of
Rs. 3102.62 lakhs as on the balance sheet date. As per information and
explanations provided, the revenue apportionment by Western Railways does not
include the apportionments for share of revenue towards the Bharuch - Chavaj
section. Further, the company has alsc recognized the ‘Intangible assets’
pertaining to this section as the freight sharing rights of the company. However,
the concession agreement executed with the Ministry of Railways dated 25th June
2008 does not include the said section as it was not envisaged at the time of
agreement. During the period, the Railway Board vide its letter dated 22-11-2017
has approved for apportionment of freight for Bharuch — Chavaj from the date from
which the section was opened for traffic. However, the apportionment is yet to be
provided by the Western Railways and the final figures could vary. Cur Opinion is
not qualified in respect of this matter.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

¢)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
cf our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of
other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of

Charges in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant
Rules issued thereunder

Cn the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2018 taken of record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 1684 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

. The Company did not have any iong-term contracts including derivative
confracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(€13



2. Asrequired bythe Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extentapplicable.

o)

As required by the direction issued by the comptrolier and Auditor-General india. in

terms of sub section (5) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the compliance in the
“Annexure C”

For D. Singh & Co.

© . Chartered Accountants

“Fism Registration No. 001351N

e " Birnran éinéh

Partner
Membership No. 88641

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21-08-2018
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internai Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’}

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bharuch Dahej
Railway Company Limited (“the Company’} as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accerdance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conirols over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of interna! financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ing AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinien on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controt over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externat purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A cgtiiamy’s internal financial control over financial



reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financia! statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabie assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financiai statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financiat control over financial reporting may become
madequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporiing were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018 based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For D. SINGH & CO
Chartered Accountants
- Firm’s Registration Number: 1351N

R S R W
e -

Simran Singh

" Partner

Membership Number: 098641

New Delhi
Date: 21-08-2018
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(v)

(vi)

Annexure - B to the Audifors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018,

We report that:

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particuiars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed Assets.

{b) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has last made
physical verification of the assets in the year 2016 which covered about 63 kms of the

Bharuch Dahej Railway system. However, no details were available on record with respect
to the same.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ocur

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company/ Western Railways.

The Company does not hold any inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented for,

The Company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to
the company.

Ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
the company has not given any lecan, made any investment, given any guarantee, and
provided any security which is covered by Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act
2013. Accordingly, the praovisions of clause 3(iv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, the provisions

of clause 3(v) of the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the
Company.

As per information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the
services rendered by the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and expianations given to us and the records of thé company

examined by us, in our opinion, the company is regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, service tax, provident fund
and other material statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’
state insurance, sales-tax, wealih-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax
and cess are not applicable to the company. No undisputed amounts were outstanding
in respect of Statutory dues as at March 31, 2018 for period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.




(vili)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the following are the
Statutory dues pending ¢n account of disputes -

Name of [ Nature of Dues | Amount (Rs.  Period  to | Forum where
Statute inlakhs) | which the | the dispute is pending
amount
| relates
Service Tax | Service  Jax, | 1633.14 2011-12tc | Demand was dropped
binterest and 2013-14 | by the Commissioner
i penalty | vide  order  dated
25-01-2016. However, :
the department has filed
an appeal before the
Hon'ble CESTAT and
' the matter is pending.

Service Tax | Service  Tax,| 1637.98 2014-15 | The demand has been |
interest and disputed by the company
penalty and is pending for

adjudication before the
Commissioner Service
Tax.

Service Tax Service Tax, 1614.85 2015-18 The demand has been
interest and : disputed by the company
penalty and is pending for

adjudication before the
Commissioner  Service
Tax.

e |

Reference is drawn to Note No 36 fo the Ind AS financial statements for further
details.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and expianations given
by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defauited in
repayment of dues to bank.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given
to us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.




()

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for

managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions cf section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not
applicable.

According {o the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered inte non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934,

For 0. SINGH & CO
Chartered Accountants
;_:_-E:R__N < 1351N

Membership No. 098641

New Delhi
Date: 21-08-2018
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Annexure — C to the Auditors’ Report

5 No.

CAG's Directions

I Our Report i Action Taken [mpact  on
thereen accounts and
financial statements
| of the company
i 1. Whether the company | Accerding to No action Not applicable
has clear titlefiease information required
deeds for freehold and explanations given
and leasehold land . tous and based on our
respectively? If not examination of the
please statethearea | records of the
of freehiold and company, the title
leasehold landfor deeds of land being
whichtitie/llease immovable property are
deeds are not held in the name of the
available. Company/ Western
Railway.
2. Whether there are any | According to No action Not applicakle
cases of waiver/ write | information required
off of and explanations
debts/locans/interest given to us and based
etc., if yes, the on our examination of
reasons there for the records of the
and the amount company
involved. there are no cases
of waiver/ write off
of debts/
loans/interest etc.
2 Whether proper The company does not No  action Not applicable
records have any inventory;! required
are maintained for hence the provisions
inventories lying with | of this clause are not
third parties & assets i applicable.
received as
gift/grant(s) from
Government or other
authorities.

...ForD. SINGH & CO
- Ghartered Accountants
FRN:1351N

A

~Simran'Singh
“Partner
Membership No. 098641
New Delhi

Date: 21-08-2018
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018.

The preparation of financial statements of BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY
LIMITED for the period ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company.
The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditer General of india under Section 139
{5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
21.08.2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of BHARUCH DAHEJ RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED for
the period ended 31 March 2018 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is
limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective

examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which
would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors” report under section 143

(6) (b) of the Act.

For and on the behall of the
Comptroller & Auditor, General of India

(B.R.Mondal)
Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Audit
Dated:  }2 September 2018 Railway Commercial, New Delhi






